Captains Flat Bibliography

A list of materials about Captains Flat selected from magazines, newspapers and the internet.

First edition compiled by Elizabeth Estbergs October 2004, updated to July 2006

Table of contents

1.	INTRODUCTION 1-1
2.	ILLUSTRATIONS2-2
3.	MAPS
4.	ART, CULTURE AND HERITAGE4-1
5.	CEMETERY AND OBITUARIES 5-1
6.	ENVIRONMENT, FLORA AND FAUNA 6-1
7.	GEOLOGICAL SURVEYS7-1
8.	GEOLOGY 8-1
9.	HEALTH AND MEDICAL9-1
10.	MINE POLLUTION AND REHABILITATION 10-1
11.	MINERS 11-1
12.	MINING 12-1
13.	POLITICS AND GOVERNMENT13-1
14.	POST OFFICE 14-1
15.	RAILWAY 15-1
16.	ROADS 16-1
17.	SCHOOL OF ARTS AND EDUCATION 17-1
18.	SOCIAL HISTORY18-1
19.	SPORT19-1
20	WAR 20-1

21.	WATER SUPPLY	21.	_1
4 1.	WAILN JUFFLI	 ~ 1.	- 1

1. Introduction

This listing of publicly available material on Captains Flat does not contain all mentions of Captains Flat in all publications. Obituaries, for instance, are well covered in a variety of indexes and so do not need to be reproduced individually unless they are sourced from other than the main obituary resources.

The lack of page numbers on the newspaper articles stems from two sources, one, the people compiling the newspaper clipping files did not note them and two, some internet newspapers do not quote the page number of the print version especially *The Canberra Times* and the *Queanbeyan Age*.

Internet copies of publications are not usually included, though where the publication is solely published on the internet it has been included e.g. Bright Sparcs at the University of Melbourne.

The material resides in a number of repositories, most of which have internet access, either to listing of the material, or to digitised copies. The major repositories are:

Canberra and District Historical Society http://canberrahistory.org.au/default.asp

Heraldry & Genealogical Society of Canberra http://www.hagsoc.org.au

National Archives of Australia http://www.naa.gov.au

National Library of Australia http://www.nla.gov.au

New South Department of Mineral Resources http://www.minerals.nsw.gov.au

Noel Butlin Archives at the Australian National University http://www.archives.anu.edu.au/nbac/html/index.php

ScreenSound, National Film and Sound Archives http://www.screensound.gov.au

The Sheedy Memorial Local History Collection, Queanbeyan Public Library http://www.qcc.nsw.gov.au/page.aspx?page=1243

State Library of New South Wales http://www.sl.nsw.gov.au/

State Records Authority of New South Wales http://www.records.nsw.gov.au

Online newspapers are: Canberra Times archive from 1999 http://canberra.yourguide.com.au/arch/index.asp

Queanbeyan Age archive http://queanbeyan.yourguide.com.au/search.asp

2. Illustrations

The following websites contain a wealth of illustrative material on Captains Flat. PictureAustralia is a search engine to many repositories in Australia, such as the State Library of New South Wales and the ACT Heritage Library.

- 2.1. PictureAustralia. http://www.pictureaustralia.org
- 2.2. National Library of Australia. http://www.nla.gov.au/
- 2.3. National Archives of Australia. http://www.naa.gov.au/
- 2.4. Art Gallery of New South Wales. Archibald, Wynne, Sulman, Dobell and Australian Photographic Portrait Prizes Database http://www.artgallery.nsw.gov.au/lib/prizes database
- 2.5. Canberra and District Historical Society http://canberrahistory.org.au/default.asp

The following repository has digitised pictures, but not available through the internet.

2.6. The Sheedy Memorial Local History Collection, Queanbeyan Public Library

3. Maps

Captains Flat was in the Shire of Yarrowlumla and in the Parish of Ballalaba and also in Bullongong County of Murray. It is now in a different Shire, briefly known as Eastern Capital City Region Council and finally as Palerang Council. Its reference is

LATITUDE: 35° 34' S [Decimal Degrees -35.582°] LONGITUDE: 149° 27' E [Decimal Degrees 149.451°] EASTING: 722000 [UTM zone 55, GDA 94]

Many collections of maps are being digitised especially the historic maps held by the New South Wales Department of Lands, Land and Property Information Division and the National Library. The Geographical Names Board of New South Wales maintains the register of official geographical names of New South Wales.

- 3.1. New South Wales Department of Lands, Land and Property Information Division digitised Parish and Historic Maps http://www.lpi.nsw.gov.au/maps/parish.html
- 3.2. Geographical Names Board of New South Wales http://www.gnb.nsw.gov.au/
- 3.3. National Library of Australia http://www.nla.gov.au

3.4. Geoscience Australia is the third name for the organization that started in 1946 as the Bureau of Mineral and Resources which then became the Australian Geological Survey of Australia in 1992. The organisation has a long history in mapping the minerals of Australia. The website has the gazetteer of Australia as well as downloadable maps. http://www.ga.gov.au/map/names/

4. Art, culture and heritage

- 4.1. Canberra Youth Theatre history, 1974. http://www.cytc.net/about/index.php?sid=4
- 4.2. Captains Flat heritage trail opened (2004) *Bungendore Mirror*, 26 May 2004: 1
- 4.3. Captain's Flat to set up "Ned Kelly" Committee (1969) *Queanbeyan Age* 1 July 1969
- 4.4. Digging deep into the history of Captains Flat (2004) *Canberra Times* 26 May 2004
- 4.5. Erebus East (1898) The Outcast: poem written after hearing the story of a girl stranded at Captains Flat *Queanbeyan Observer* 17 May 1898
- 4.6. Estbergs, Elizabeth (2005) The Captains Flat Cemetery *Bungendore Mirror* 17 August 2005: 9
- 4.7. Estbergs. Elizabeth (2005) More Captains Flat place names *Bungendore Mirror* 22 June 2005: 8
- 4.8. Estbergs, Elizabeth (2005) Origins of Captains Flat's names *Bungendore Mirror* 15 June 2005: 9
- 4.9. Estbergs, Elizabeth (2005) Two of Captains Flat's memorials *Bungendore Mirror* 18 May 2005: 9
- 4.10. Filming starts at Captains Flat: for the making of the New South Wales Film Corporation Film "My brilliant career" (1978) *Canberra Times*, 4 November 1978
- 4.11. Image of pain a grim reminder (1999) *Sydney Morning Herald*, 10 January 1999
- 4.12. Inside with the Outsiders (1999) *Sydney Morning Herald*, Saturday 12 May 1999

- 4.13. Lagana, Vera (2002) Launch of Captain's Flat Project Gold Mine Trail, *ACChieving together: newsletter of the Area Consultative Committees*, October 2002 http://www.acc.gov.au/newsletter/october-2002/index.aspx
- 4.14. "The Maid from Captain's Flat" poem on bravery of the girl who resisted the mail coach robbers (1898) *Queanbeyan Observer* 23 August 1898
- 4.15. Mick Jagger hurt on film location (1969) *Queanbeyan Age*, 10 August 1969
- 4.16. Outside the square: a feast of colour and monumentally large serves await visitors to Captains Flat (2001) *Canberra Times* March 15, 2001: 6
- 4.17. Pathway to gold Captains Flat heritage trail facts: there is more to Captains Flat than the Bowling Club (2004) *Bowls ACT Journal* vol 19 no. 5 June/July 2004:59-61
- 4.18. Queanbeyan Amateurs give minstrel and dramatic entertainment at Goggin's Hotel in aid of cricket club (1897) *Goulburn Herald* 14 April 1897
- 4.19. Shades of murder haunt gallery exhibition (2002) *Canberra Times* 16 August 2002
- 4.20. There's art in them that hills out at Captains Flat (1974) *Canberra Times*, 17 October 1974
- 4.21. A War poet who loved the Flat: Captains Flat home to War poet Bert Beros (1992) *Queanbeyan Age*, 17 March 1992
- 4.22. Webb, Peter (2001) Remembering the Present exhibition, extracted from New South Wales Legislative Assembly Hansard. Article no. 26 of 3 April 2001.
- 4.23. Woods, Trudy (2002) Golden day for the Flat: the Pathway to Gold Project officially launched, *Queanbeyan Age*, Wednesday 14 August 2002
- 4.24. Zzoommovies (1970) *A Stone in the bush*; 16mm colour film; 26 minutes, sound;

5. Cemetery and obituaries

Only a few obituaries are individually indexed because they are not in the sources below. As well as the sources listed below, obituaries can also be found in the Ryerson index http://www.rootsweb.com/~nswsdps/dpsindx1.htm (use the search term Captains Flat).

- 5.1. Biographical register of Canberra and Queanbeyan: from the district to the Australian Capital Territory 1820-1930: with Bungendore, Captains Flat, Michelago, Tharwa, Uriarra, Hall, Gundaroo, Gunning, Collector and Tarago / compiled and edited by Peter Procter. Canberra (A.C.T.): The Heraldry & Genealogy Society of Canberra, 2001., 353 p.
- 5.2. Bungendore to Captain's Flat: cemeteries, gravesites of the district and deaths during the Wars (War Memorial) compiled by Barry Stephenson. Queanbeyan, N.S.W.: B. Stephenson, 2003. [12], 238 p.; 30 cm. See also http://www.interment.net/data/aus/nsw/southerntablelands/capt_flat/index.ht m
- 5.3. Forster, Betty Guise (1994) *Alphabetical card index of death and memoriam notices appearing in the Canberra Times, 3 September 1928-31 December 1970.* In the National Library of Australia.
- 5.4. Heraldry and Genealogical Society of Canberra (1986) *Canberra Times index 1975-83: deaths, probate, in memoriam, notices, golden weddings and other notable anniversaries*. Canberra, The Society, 1986
- 5.5. Heraldry and Genealogical Society of Canberra (1991) *Canberra Times: index to deaths, probate, change of name, anniversaries 1984-1989.* Canberra, The Society, 1991
- 5.6. Heraldry and Genealogical Society of Canberra (1996) *Canberra Times: index to deaths, probate, change of name, anniversaries: 1990-1995.* Canberra, The Society, 1996.
- 5.7. Heraldry and Genealogical Society of Canberra (2000) *Canberra Times index to deaths, probate, change of name, anniversaries* 1996 1999. Canberra, The Society, 2000.
- 5.8. Heraldry and Genealogical Society of Canberra (2003) *The Canberra Times index to deaths, probates, change of name, anniversaries and In Memoriam notices, January 2000-March 2003*. Canberra, The Society, 2003.

- 5.9. Information on Natural Heritage grants to protect the Tarengo Leek Orchid at Captain's Flat Cemetery. This plant is listed as endangered as it has only been located in three sites; one of which is the Captains Flat cemetery. http://www.nht.gov.au/nht1/projects/2001-2002/grassy/
- 5.10. Lea-Scarlett, Errol *Index to the Golden Age and The Queanbeyan Age Index*. The indexes are sorted by year, and then alphabetically by name.
- 5.11. Quince, Harrie (2001) *Queanbeyan Age obituaries 1910-30, part 1 1910-19*. Canberra, HAGSOC, 2001.
- 5.12. Quince, Harrie (2001) *Queanbeyan Age obituaries 1910-30, part 2 1920-30.* Canberra, HAGSOC, 2001.
- 5.13.
- 5.14. Warden, Ian (1993) Scientist finds life after death: protected from farming, cemeteries are havens for rare plants, a report on graveyard surveys by Sandie Jones, *Canberra Times*, 16 May 1993.

Individuals

- 5.15. Bill Thompson: top craftsman and sawmiller (1979) *Queanbeyan Age* 14 November 1979
- 5.16. City news in brief: the death is announced of Mr E.C. Leaman, director of Lake George Mining (1954) *The Times*, August 17, 1954: issue 53012: 11 col G
- 5.17. Glasson, Kenneth R. 1921-1994 (199) Australian Science Archives Project, University of Melbourne http://www.asap.unimelb.edu.au/bsparcs/biogs/P002367b.htm
- 5.18. In the Intestate Estate of Henry Fawcett, late of Lake George Mines, Captain's Flat deceased (1899) *New South Wales Government Gazette* 10 November 1899: 8476
- 5.19.
- 5.20. Joseph Fowler (1959) Queanbeyan Age 5 May 1959
- 5.21. Maurice Alan Edgar Mawby 1904-1977 (1995) Australian Science Archives Project, University of Melbourne http://www.asap.unimelb.edu.au/bsparcs/aasmemoirs/mawby.htm

- 5.22. Obituary: Dr J.M. Maclaren: a noted mining expert (1935) *The Times*, Friday, March 22, 1935, issues 47019: 21 col. C
- 5.23. Obituary: Richmond Baker Rikard-Bell MB BS (1922-2001) spent five years in country practice at Captains Flat (2002) Medical Journal of Australia vol. 177 no. 2:274
- 5.24. Obituary: Tribute to Ted Maslin (1979) *Queanbeyan Age* 23 May 1979: 11
- 5.25. Sir James Foots B.M.E. (Melb) Hon.D.Eng (Qld) FTS obituary (2002) Sustainable Metals Institute, University of Queensland http://www.smi.uq.edu.au/?page=5849&pid=5790
- 5.26. Walter, Naylor (1959) Queanbeyan Age 5 May 1959
- 5.27. Weber, Ivy Lavinia (1892-1976) *Australian Dictionary of Biography v.12 Smy-Z*

6. Environment, flora and fauna

- 6.1. ACT Commissioner for the Environment. Indicator: Aquatic macro-invertebrates (2000) in *State of the Environment report 2000*. http://www.environmentcommissioner.act.gov.au/SoE2000/ACT/IndicatorResults/Aquaticmacro-invertebrates.htm
- 6.2. ACT Government. Conservator of Flora and Fauna. (1999) *Murray River Crayfish (Euastacus armatus): A vulnerable species. Action Plan No.* 14. Environment ACT, Canberra.

http://www.urbanservices.act.gov.au/Files/actionplans14.pdf

- 6.3. Australopyrum pectinatum (Labill.) Á.Löve, Feddes Repert. 95: 442 (1984). Pooideae (Poaceae) in Australia http://biodiversity.uno.edu/delta/pooid/www/descr059.htm
- 6.4. Baker, G.L. (1997) Psammomermis sericesthidis n.sp. (Nematoda: Mermithidae), a parasitoid of pasture feeding scarab larvae (Coleoptera: Scarabaeidae) in southeastern Australia. *Fundamental and applied nematology*, 1977, v. 20 no. 6:571-580
- 6.5. Bedingfield, Michael (2004) Tarengo Leek Orchid: an endangered species. *News of Friends of Grasslands* November-December 2004: 13
- 6.6. Biogeochemistry of ancient and modern environments: proceedings of the Fourth International Symposium on Environmental Biogeochemistry (ISEB) and, Conference on Biogeochemistry in Relation to the Mining Industry and Environmental Pollution (Leaching Conference), held in Canberra, Australia, 26 August-4 September 1979. Canberra: Australian Academy of Science, 1980: 723
- 6.7. Bliss of the spiderwoman (2004) *ANU Reporter*, Autumn 2004
- 6.8. Brandon, Ken (1984) Flat Chat, Sir here is a news item, The recently named Kerr Creek (formerly Brandon Creek) is to be cleared of its jungle life growth (1984) *Queanbeyan Age* March 1984
- 6.9. Brown, Senator Bob (2000) Environment Ballalaba Action Group: notes that the Ballalaba Action Group has launched an appeal to raise money for Hungarians who depend on the rivers affected by the cyanide spill *Senate Journals* 13 April 2000, no. 113: 2629

- 6.10. Burns, Emma L., Eldridge, Mark D. B. & Houlden, Bronwyn A. (2004) Microsatellite variation and population structure in a declining Australian Hylid Litoria aurea. *Molecular Ecology* 13 (7), 1745-1757. http://www.blackwell-synergy.com/links/doi/10.1111/j.1365-294X.2004.02190.x/abs/
- 6.11. Campbell, M.H. et. al (1997) Variation in Hypericum perforatum L (St John's wort) in New South Wales. *Plant protection quarterly* v. 12 no. 2 :64-66
- 6.12. CSIRO Wildlife and Ecology (2000) Global warming: local consequences. Can we predict the likely impacts of climate change in the ACT region? A discussion paper. Canberra: EnvironmentACT and ACTEW Corporation, 2000.

http://www.actewagl.com.au/publications/GreenChoice/globalWarming.pdf

- 6.13. EnvironmentACT (2004) Fish in the Upper Murrumbidgee catchment: a review of current knowledge http://www.environment.act.gov.au/airandwater/fishintheuppermurrumbidgee catchment.html
- 6.14. Estbergs, Elizabeth (2006) The Public trees of Captains Flat *Bungendore Mirror*, Wednesday 28 June 2006: 8
- 6.15. From your Committee: .. Peregrine falcon site at Keatings Collapse (2002) Gang-gang online: newsletter of the Canberra Ornithologists Group Inc July 2002
- 6.16. Garrick, R. (2002) *Phylogeography of a new species of Collembola (Neanuridae) from Tallaganda State Forest, New South Wales.* Honours Thesis, Dept of Genetics, La Trobe University
- 6.17. Garrick, R and Sunnucks, P. July 2003: International Congress of Genetics, Melbourne (poster). Phylogeography of a new species of Collembola (Neanuridae) from Tallaganda State Forest, New South Wales.
- 6.18. Graham, G.A.; Byron, G. & Norris, R.H. Survival of Salmo gairdneri (rainbow trout) in the zinc polluted Molonglo River near Captains Flat, New South Wales, Australia.(1986) *Bull. Environ. Contam. Toxicol.*; Vol/Issue: 36(2), 1986 Feb 01,:186-191.

- 6.19. Guiance, Javier *Bell frog conservation*. http://www.fnpw.com.au/enews3/BellFrogs.htm
- 6.20. Information on Natural Heritage grants to protect the Tarengo Leek Orchid at Captain's Flat Cemetery. A draft Recovery Plan has recently been developed for the Tarengo Leek orchid. This plant is listed as endangered as it has only been located in three sites; one of which is the Captains Flat cemetery. Whilst this plan is being developed this funding will assist in the undertaking of some on-ground works that will complement the recovery of the orchid.

http://www.nht.gov.au/nht1/projects/2001-2002/grassy/

- 6.21. Jones, Sandie (n.d.) Nature at the grave's edge: remnant native flora and fauna in the cemeteries of the Southern Tablelands of New South Wales
- 6.22. Minister congratulates Captains Flat Work for Dole team (2002) Press release published 4 July 2002: ref 739. http://parlinfoweb.aph.gov.au
- 6.23. Molonglo Catchment Group (2005) Molonglo Catchment strategy 2004-2024. Manuka, A.C.T.; Molonglo Catchment Group, 2005 http://www.molonglocatchment.com.au
- 6.24. Nairn launches Green Corps project at Captains Flat (2003)
 Press release published 21 March 2003: ref 921
 http://parlinfoweb.aph.gov.au
- 6.25. Nature at the grave's edge (1998) The Conservation Council of the South-East Region and Canberra. (Inc.) Design & Construction: John Wickens, Kevin Wills, 1998. The original report by Sandie Jones. http://www.ecoaction.net.au/ccserac/Grave/specieslist/capflat.htm
- 6.26. NSW Department of Primary Industries (2002) *Stocking of inland native fish species 2001/02 stocking season.*

http://www.fisheries.nsw.gov.au/rec/fw/native stock 200102.htm

6.27. NSW Department of Primary Industries (2003) Two million good reasons to fish: hatchery breaks record.

http://www.fisheries.nsw.gov.au/gen/news/arc/fb 04mar23 two.htm

1739.1998.97100.x/abs/

- 6.28. New South Wales. Minister for Energy (2001) Report Under Clause 243 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000 AGL Gas Networks Limited Proposed Canberra Primary Mains Extension, Natural Gas Pipeline Project

 http://www.doe.nsw.gov.au/statistic/spdstats/publication/MinisterforEnergyclause243report.pdf
- 6.29. Patmore, Samuel (2002) The ecology, distribution and abundance of green and golden bell frogs Litoria aurea (Anura: Hylidae) on the Molonglo River floodplain between Queanbeyan and Captain Flat in the Southern Tablelands of NSW University of Canberra, Applied Ecology Research Group (BSc)Hons.
- 6.30. Patmore, Samuel. (2002). Home range, daily movement patterns and habitat preference of the Green and Golden Bell Frog, Litoria aureal, in the Southern Tablelands, NSW. 29th General Meeting of the Australian Society of Herpetologists. Australian Society of Herpetologists. http://www.gu.edu.au/school/asc/ppages/academic/jmhero/ash/newsletters/Program.pdf.
- 6.31. PhD. student looking to unravel spiders' web of mystery (2004) *Canberra Times*, 27 April 2004.
- 6.32. Prober, Suzanne M., Spindler, Linden H. & Brown, A. H. D. (1998) Conservation of the Grassy White Box Woodlands: Effects of Remnant Population Size on Genetic Diversity in the Allotetraploid Herb Microseris lanceolata. *Conservation Biology* 12 (6), 1279-1290. http://www.blackwell-synergy.com/links/doi/10.1046/j.1523-
- 6.33. Project 1: Comparative Phylogeography of log-dwelling invertebrates at Tallaganda State Forest / National Park.

http://www.latrobe.edu.au/genetics/staff/sunnucks/homepage/tallaganda.html

- 6.34. Reid, Cam (1999) Eucalyptus seedling herbivory by a species of Cadmus Erichson (Coleoptera: Chrysomelidae: Cryptocephalinae) *Australian Journal of Entomology* vol. 38 issue 3, August 1999:201
- 6.35. Sands, C. & Sunnucks, P. *July 2003: International Congress of Genetics, Melbourne (poster). Phylogeography of Phallocephale.* http://www.latrobe.edu.au/genetics/staff/sunnucks/homepage/image

- 6.36. Schuh, Randall T. (2000) *Longepi boyd* Platnick: ant found at Captains Flat. American Museum of Natural History http://research.amnh.org/entomology/lamponid/82txt.htm
- 6.37. The strange animal from Jingera: wombat? (1893) *Queanbeyan Age*, Tuesday 3 October 1893. Also *The Goulburn Evening Penny Post* 28th
 October 1893 and *Goulburn Evening Penny Post*, 31st October 1893: 3. Mr
 Arthur Marrin, cordial manufacturer killed a large unidentified animal on the road near Captains Flat, there was some speculation it could have been a very large wombat, but he buried it before a definite decision could be made.
- 6.38. Sunnucks, P. & Tait, N.N. (2001) Velvet worms: expect the unexpected. *Nature Australia*, Winter 2001, p.60-69.
- 6.39. Tarengo Leek Orchid Recovery Team (2003) Recovery plan for the Tarengo Leek Orchid (Prasophyllum petilum): draft for public comment. Queanbeyan, N.S.W.; New South Wales National Parks and Wildlife Service, 1993.
- 6.40. Taws, Nicki (1998) The Bushlands of Mt Foxlow-Harrisons Peak: a preliminary ecological assessment; a report to the Save the Bush Grants Scheme and the Stoney Creek Landcare Group. Carwoola, N.S.W.; Carwoola Landcare Group, 1998.
- 6.41. University of Sydney. School of Molecular and Microbial Sciences (2 Environment 1002 lecture 7: *Environmental problems caused by microbes* http://www.mmb.usyd.edu.au/MICR/EnvSci/ENVI1002%20lect%207%20notes.pdf
- 6.42. Weed problems who you gunna call? Send in the hippos (2004) *Canberra Times*, 18 April 2004.

7. Geological surveys

Geological survey reports relating to the mining companies or the mining area of Captains Flat were produced by the NSW Department of Mineral Resources and a variety of companies holding mining leases.

State Records New South Wales http://www.records.nsw.gov.au/, series 15033, Geological survey reports starting 1 January 1875 lists the geological surveys. Use the Archives Investigator and the search term Captains Flat to bring up a list of 203 items.

The Department of Mineral Resources has digitised all of their reports and they are on a searchable database. (Digital Imaging of Geological Systems) http://www.minerals.nsw.gov.au/geosurvey/digs.htm

The reports by mining companies can also be found at the State Records New South Wales website.

8. Geology

- 8.1. Almond, R. A. (1971) *Captains Flat geophysical survey, New South Wales 1971*. Canberra: Bureau of Mineral Resources, Geology and Geophysics, 1971. 12 p. BMR record; 1971/136
- 8.2. Conaghan, Hugh Francis (1949) *Geochemical and geophysical prospecting at Captain's Flat /*by H. F. Conaghan and W. E. Foskett Sydney, 1949. At head of title Dept. of Mines, New South Wales. The Geological survey of New South Wales.
- 8.3. Davis L W, (1990) Silver-Lead-Zinc-Copper mineralisation in the Captains Flat-Goulburn synclinorial zone and the Hill End synclinorial zone; in Hughes F E (Ed.), 1990 *Geology of the Mineral Deposits of Australia & Papua New Guinea* The AusIMM, Melbourne. Mono 14, v.2:1375-1384
- 8.4. Davis, L W, (1975) Captains Flat lead-zinc orebody; in Knight C L, (Ed.), 1975 *Economic Geology of Australia & Papua New Guinea*. The AusIMM, Melbourne. 5: 694-700
- 8.5. Downes, P.M. and Seccombe, P.K.(2004) Sulfur isotope distribution in Late Silurian volcanic-hosted massive sulfide deposits of the Hill End Trough, eastern Lachlan Fold Belt, *New South Wales Australian Journal of Earth Sciences* February 2004, vol. 51, no. 1, pp. 125-141(17) http://www.blackwell-synergy.com/links/doi/10.1046/j.1400-0952.2003.01048.x/abs/;jsessionid=gjCtftmsE2qb
- 8.6. Erskine, John (1980) Exploration for minerals, Captains Flat region *The Captains Flat mining record*, Saturday October 4, 1980
- 8.7. Farrow, B. B. (1970) *AFMAG field tests, Captains Flat, N.S.W.* 1969. Canberra: Bureau of Mineral Resources, Geology and Geophysics, 1970. 4 p. BMR record; 1970/105
- 8.8. Fellows, Melissa (1991) *A stratigraphic and palaeoenvironmental study of the Bungendore formation, Lake George, NSW*. Honours Thesis. Australian National University Geology Department.
- 8.9. Flannery, Nancy Robinson (2002) The Lens of an earth scientist: life, work and donations to the National Library of Australia by post-war geologist Dr Alick William Green Whittle 1920-1987, *NLA News*, March 2004, vol. xiv no. 6. http://www.nla.gov.au/pub/nlanews/2004/mar04/article1.html

- 8.10. Fogarty, Peter. (2003) Draft EIS Defence Headquarters Australian Theatres Project 12343\283\EIS-DTP\ JXRAppendix F Landform and Soils. URS Corp. http://www.ap.urscorp.com/hqast_eis/pdf/Appendix%20F.pdf
- 8.11. Glasson, K. R. (1957) The regional geology and structures of an area around Captain's Flat (N.S.W.) and their influence on the mineralisation and formation of the ore bodies. 1957. 97, xvii p. :plans, (i.e. 2v.). Thesis (M. Sc.)--University of Sydney, 1957.
- 8.12. Glasson, K. R. (1965) Explorations at Captains Flat, NSW a case history, in 8th Commonwealth Mining and Metallurgical Congress, v.2 :324-335. Melbourne, 1965.
- 8.13. Gold from Foxlow (1875) *Queanbeyan Age* 21 April 1875
- 8.14. Hayden, P (1980) Structure and metamorphism of the Ordovician rocks of the Cullarin Horst near Jerangle, NSW. Ph.D. Thesis. Australian National University.
- 8.15. Hebden, E. C. B. (1930) The Lake George Mine, Captains Flat, N.S.W. *Chemical engineering and mining review*, May 1930
- 8.16. Henderson, Pam (1972) Field study of Captain's Flat in *The Geography bulletin* March 1972
- 8.17. Huleatt, M.B. (1971) Correlation of Silurian rocks in the Braidwood and Captains Flat districts. Geological Survey of New South Wales, *Quarterly notes*, no. 3 1971
- 8.18. King, Penelope L. (1993) *Virtual excursion guide to the Wangrah Suite Jerangle area, southeastern Australia* (Originally an excursion with the Geol. Soc. Aust., Canberra Division, 1993) http://www.uwo.ca/earth/people/king/research/penny_granite.html
- 8.19. [Minor earthquake has shaken Michelago and Captains Flat] (1998) WIN TV NEWS. CANBERRA. 31st December, 1998. Location, National Film and Sound Archive, Canberra.
- 8.20. New South Wales. Hydraulics and Soils Laboratory. (1975)

 Forsters Creek model: Captains Flat. Sydney: New South Wales
 Department of Public Works, 1975. iv, 6p. Report (New South Wales.
 Hydraulics and Soils Laboratory); no. 187.

- 8.21. Nisbet, B. W. (1970) *Structural geology of the Captains Flat area, NSW*. Honours Thesis, Australian National University Geology Department.
- 8.22. O'Brien, Kevin J. (1973) *The depositional environment of Captains Flat type mineralisation*. Honours Thesis, Australian National University Geology Department.
- 8.23. Oldershaw, W. (Walter) (1965) *Geological and geochemical survey of the Captains Flat area, New South Wales*, by W. Oldershaw. [Canberra] Bureau of Mineral Resources, Geology and Geophysics, 1965. 55 p. illus., diagrs., maps (part fold.) tables. 24 cm. Report (Australia. Bureau of Mineral Resources, Geology and Geophysics); 101.
- 8.24. Sampath, N. (1973) *Captains Flat metalliferous survey, New South Wales, 1972*. Canberra: Bureau of Mineral Resources, Geology and Geophysics, 1973. 5 p. BMR record; 1973/125.
- 8.25. Scott, K.M., Sylvester, G.C., and Kosakevitch, A. (1981) Zn, Curich pickeringite from Captains Flat, N.S.W. *Australian Mineralogist*, 1(36): 191 192, 2 tables
- 8.26. Sedmik, E. C. E. (1960) *Captains Flat metalliferous geophysical survey, N.S.W. 1960 / by E.C.E. Sedmik.* Canberra: Bureau of Mineral Resources, Geology and Geophysics, 1965. 13 p., 18 leaves (some folded): maps; 24 cm. Report (Australia. Bureau of Mineral Resources, Geology and Geophysics); no. 96.
- 8.27. *Soil landscapes of the Michelago 1:100,000 sheet.* http://www.dlwc.nsw.gov.au/care/soil/ssu/pubstat/michelag.htm
- 8.28. *Southern Highlands landform*. http://www.nationalparks.nsw.gov.au/npws.nsf/Content/South+Eastern+Highlands+-+landform
- 8.29. [Thermal infra-red scanned imagery of Captains Flat and Googong, N.S.W., 18-19 March 1971] [map]: Australia. Bureau of Mineral Resources, Geology and Geophysics 11 remote sensing images on 1 sheet. Notes: Origin uncertain. Possibly Canberra, A.C.T.: Bureau of Mineral Resources, Geology and Geophysics.

9. Health and medical

- 9.1. Captains Flat doctor welcomed: the new Captain's Flat medical officer, Dr. R. J. Lunt was met by a welcoming committee at Fairbairn airport (1963) *Queanbeyan Age* Friday, 10 May 1963
- 9.2. Captain's Flat gets a doctor: Dr D.J. Lunt (1963) *Canberra Times*, 11 May 1963.
- 9.3. Captain's Flat move to retain baby health clinic (1964) *Queanbeyan Age* 11 September 1964: 1
- 9.4. Captain's Flat's new hospital: the new hospital is to be opened in early March (1940) *Queanbeyan Age* 30 January 1940
- 9.5. Captains Flat to have hospital (1944) *Queanbeyan Age*, 28 September 1944
- 9.6. Cr.Kerr resigns from Shire and quits Labor Party: over the sale of the hospital (1964) *Queanbeyan Age*, 14 April 1964
- 9.7. Dinner for Captains Flat nursing sister: Joan Davis award Order of Australia for services to nursing (1982) *Canberra Times*, Sunday 28 February 1982
- 9.8. Dr I. Wallace Watson M.D., Ch.M. resumes practice at Captains Flat after severe illness (1897) *Goulburn Herald* 5 February 1897
- 9.9. "Flat" doctor to arrive on Friday: English medical officer Dr R. J.Lunt to arrive from Royal West Sussex Hospital (1963) *Queanbeyan Age* Tuesday 7 May 1963
- 9.10. 'Flat gossip: the funds of the 'Flat District Hospital Auxiliary have benefited from a number of functions (1954) *Queanbeyan News* Friday, August 13, 1954
- 9.11. 'Flat hospital closed vans remove equipment; three resident pickets arrested (1963) *Queanbeyan Age* 27 September 1963: 1
- 9.12. 'Flat hospital to be removed (1964) *Queanbeyan Age*, February 25, 1964

- 9.13. Hospital leased to tourist promoter: the Yarrowlumla Shire Council has granted a lease of the Captain's Flat hospital buildings to Mr E Mawson to use for tourist accommodation purposes (1971) *Queanbeyan Age* 27 April 1971
- 9.14. Hospital may re-open as tourist hostel (1971) *Queanbeyan Age*19 March 1971: 1
- 9.15. Hospital's future hangs in the balance (1962) *Queanbeyan Age* 27 November 1962: 1
- 9.16. Inquest held into death by snakebite of John Albert Smart aged about 12 (1897) *Queanbeyan Observer* 27 January 1897
- 9.17. Joan's big night! Sister Joan Davis OAM was the guest of honour at a testimonial dinner held at the Captains Flat Workers Club (1982) Queanbeyan Age, Monday March 1, 1982:1
- 9.18. Medical examinations at Captain's Flat Central School (1960) Queanbeyan Age August 1960
- 9.19. Outbreak of hepatitis at Captains Flat (1957) *Queanbeyan Age* Tuesday, July 2, 1957: 1
- 9.20. Outbreak of typhoid (1900) *Queanbeyan Age* Wednesday, 21 February 1900
- 9.21. Request by E. W. O'Sullivan for aid to build cottage hospital at Captains Flat (1897) *Goulburn Post* 31 July 1897

10. Mine pollution and rehabilitation

- 10.1. \$2.5 million to control pollution (1974) *Canberra Times*, 6 December 1974
- 10.2. \$2.7m pollution control plan for Molonglo River (1975) *Canberra Times*, 21 May 1975
- 10.3. A.C.T. water pollution evidence mounts: trout stream ruined by chemicals (1968) *Sydney Morning Herald* 15 November 1968
- 10.4. ANU scientists study effect of pollutants from 'the Flat' (1965) *ANU reporter*, 11 June 1976: 4 v.7 no. 8
- 10.5. Aussies tackle ecological time bomb (1999) *Environmental news network*, Thursday, January 14, 1999.

http://www.enn.com/news/enn-stories/1999/01/011499/mining 1011.asp

- 10.6. Australia. Cabinet. (1973) Cabinet records Second Whitlam

 Ministry Submissions and Issues. Remedial measures to minimise pollution
 of the Molonglo River and Lake Burley Griffin from Captain's Flat Mine
 Submission 760. National Archives of Australia.

 http://www.naa.gov.au/the_collection/cabinet/1973_cabinet/state_listing.html
- 10.7. Australia. Joint Government Technical Committee on Mine Waste Pollution of the Molonglo River (1974) *Mine waste pollution of the Molonglo River: final report on remedial measures, June 1974.* Canberra: Aust. Govt. Pub. Serv., 1974. vii, 68 p., [2] leaves of plates (1 folded): col. ill., maps; 25cm.
- 10.8. Australian antiques from Farrington for sale by Hec Davies (1968) Canberra Times 1 July 1958
- 10.9. Bell, L. C. & C. J. Jones (1987) Rehabilitation of base metal tailings: Australian case studies, in, *Mining rehabilitation '87* edited by T. Farrell. Australian Mining Industry Council, Canberra, 1987.
- 10.10. Brooks, K. A. (1980) *Mine waste pollution of the Molonglo River:* an investigation into the effect of remedial measures carried out in 1976 at *Captains Flat /* K. Brooks. [Sydney?]: Chemical Laboratory, New South Wales Department of Mineral Resources, 1980. [viii], 254 p.: ill., maps; 34 cm. Report of Chemical Laboratory Project L17.

- 10.11. Brooks, K.A. (1997). Captains Flat rehabilitation 20 years on. In *Proceedings of the Third Australian Acid Mine Drainage Workshop*, Darwin, Northern Territory. 15-18 July 1997. (Eds. R.W. McLean and L.C. Bell) (Australian Centre for Minesite Rehabilitation Research: Brisbane).
- 10.12. Captains Flat gets £3,000 grant for facelift (1965) *Canberra Times*, 20 February 1965
- 10.13. Captains Flat contract doubt (1976) *Canberra Times*, 11 November 1976
- 10.14. Captains Flat mine dumps 'nasty sight' (1975) *Canberra Times*, 9 July 1975
- 10.15. Captains Flat mine pollution history, impact and solution. http://www.ballallaba.org.au/english/environment/capsflat/neglect.html
- 10.16. *Captains Flat (Abatement of pollution) Agreement Act 1975.* http://www.austlii.edu.au/au/legis/cth/consol_act/cfopaa1975426/
- 10.17. Captains Flat mine waste dumps: remedial works. (1975)
 [Sydney?]: ANCOLD, 1975. 1 v. (various pagings): ill., maps, plans; 30 cm.
 Other Authors International Commission on Large Dams. Australian
 National Committee.
- 10.18. Cassidy, Frank (2001) Aerial search for minerals in region, *Canberra Times*, 7 November 2001
- 10.19. Chapman, Kimberley. (2002) A geophysical and geochemical survey over the Southern Tailings Dump at Captains Flat, NSW Australia BSc(Hons). Macquarie University. http://www.es.mq.edu.au/geology/hntheses.htm
- 10.20. Clark, Andrew (1974) ACT-NSW wrangle over the murky mud of Molonglo *National Times*, 18-23 February 1974: 7
- 10.21. Craze, B. (1977) Heavy metal problems in the revegetation of Captains Flat mining area. *Journal of the Soil Conservation Service of New South Wales*, October 1977, v.33 no. 4: 265-271

10.22.

- 10.23. Craze, B. (1977) Investigations into the revegetation problems of Captains Flat Mining Area *Journal of the Soil Conservation Service of New South Wales*, April 1977, v.33 no. 3: 190-199
- 10.24. Craze, B. (1977) Restoration of Captains Flat mining area. *Journal of the Soil Conservation Service of New South Wales*, April 1977, v.33 no. 2: 98-105
- 10.25. *CSIRO tackles ecological time bomb* (1999) CSIRO media release 6 January 1999, ref 99/03. http://www.csiro.au/news/mediarel/mr1999/m49903.html
- 10.26. Dames& Moore (1993) Captains Flat mine site: assessment of options for further remediation for NSW Environment Protection Authority. Queanbeyan, EPA.
- 10.27. Dealing with red mud by-product of the Bayer process for refining aluminium. http://www.azom.com/details.asp?ArticleID=2071
- 10.28. Dobos, S.K. and J Brisebois (2003) Rehabilitation of the Lake George Mine at Captains Flat NSW 25 Years On Conference Proceedings Sixth International Conference on Acid Rock Drainage (ICARD), 2003
- 10.29. Flutter, J. (1974?) Captains Flat tailings dump: design of remedial works. N.p.; The Author, 1974?
- 10.30. Further Mine Rehabilitation Work for Lake George. (14 August 2003) Minister for Mineral Resources, Kerry Hickey MP, today announced further staged environmental works at the derelict Lake George Mine located at Captains Flat.
 http://www.minerals.nsw.gov.au/newsBulletins/2003Bulletins/lakegeorgemine.htm
- 10.31. Gibbons, G. S. (1962) *Gravity investigations at Captain's Flat N.S.W.* Sydney, New South Wales Government Printer, 1962
- 10.32. Goats thrive on diet of poa tussock (1978) *Canberra Times* 24 March 1978

- 10.33. Grazing on mine dump: rye grass is today covering areas of Captains Flat mine waste dumps (1977) *Queanbeyan Age*, 13 April 1977
- 10.34. <u>Hackett, Jeanne Louise</u>. (2001) *Geochemistry and microbiology at an acid mine drainage site, Captains Flat, New South Wales*. x, 87 p.: ill., maps, 30 cm. thesis (B. of Science (Environment) (Honours) Australian Catholic University, 2001.
- 10.35. Hunt, H (1988) You can't have it both ways at Captains Flat. Captains Flat is situated on the Molonglo River which feeds into Lake Burley Griffin in Canberra. It was the pollution in the lake coming from the mine waste dumps at Captains Flat that moved governments to clean up Captains Flat. *Heritage Australia*: Winter 1988, 7(2):14-16.
- 10.36. Jacobson, G. (Gerald) & G. F. Sparksman (1988) Acid mine drainage at Captains Flat, New South Wales. *BMR journal of Australian geology and geophysics*, 1988, 10: 391-393
- 10.37. Jacobson, G. (Gerald) (1975) *Quarry site investigations at Captains Flat, New South Wales, 1974* / by G. Jacobson and G. Briscoe. Canberra: Bureau of Mineral Resources, Geology and Geophysics, 1975. 7, [21] p., [1] folded plate: ill., maps; 30 cm. BMR record; 1975/057
- 10.38. Jonach, Ingrid (2005) Captains Flat mine tour reveals hazardous past *Canberra Times* 10 September 2005: 24
- 10.39. Keane, P. & B. Craze (1978) Captains Flat mined area field revegetation trials. *Journal of the Soil Conservation Service of New South Wales*. January 1978 v. 34 no. 1:37-42
- 10.40. Keane, P. & B. Craze (1977) Captains Flat mined area early revegetation investigation. *Journal of the Soil Conservation Service of New South Wales*. April 1977 v. 33 no. 2:92-97
- 10.41. Kiernan, Terry (2002) \$34,650 on self-glorification is not culturally correct, *Queanbeyan Age*, Friday 17 May 2002.
- 10.42. Lake George mine entry reopened (2006) Bungendore *Mirror* 12 April 2006: 1
- 10.43. Maher, W. A. et. al (1992) Zinc in the sediments, water and biota of Lake Burley Griffin, Canberra. *Science of the total environment*, 1992-09,

- 125: 235-252. Paper presented to: International Conference on Trace Metals in the Environment, 2nd July 1992, University of Technology, Sydney
- 10.44. Mine officers to inspect Captain's Flat dumps (1967) *Queanbeyan Age* 6 October 1967
- 10.45. Mining dumps: final stage work finalised at Captain's Flat (1988) *Queanbeyan Age* 20 January 1988
- 10.46. National Capital Development Commission (1973) Captains Flat waste pollution Cabinet submission Googong water supply project. File 73/1486
- 10.47. National Capital Development Commission (1973) Googong Water Supply Project Mining. File 73/1267
- 10.48. Negotiations on slag heaps (1973) *Canberra Times*, August 11, 1973
- 10.49. New doubt on lake pollution: tests needed (1968) *Canberra Times* 16 November 1968
- 10.50. New South Wales. Hydraulic and Soils Laboratory. (1975) Joint report on Captain's Flat mining area rehabilitation Department of Public Works Soils Laboratory and Soil Conservation Service. [Sydney: Dept of Public Works, Soils Laboratory and Soil Conservation Service, 1975] [14] p.; 34 cm
- 10.51. Norris R. H. and Allanson, M. T. (1993) *Captains Flat Mine and Molonglo River ecological and biological condition effectiveness of rehabilitation works A review.* (Report to Dames and Moore, Environmental Consultants. April 1993).
- 10.52. Norris, R. H. (1987) Effectiveness of mine rehabilitation in relation to water quality. *Acta biologica hungaria* 38(1):127-139
- 10.53. Norris, R. H. (1986). Mine waste pollution of the Molonglo River, New South Wales and the Australian Capital Territory: effectiveness of remedial works at Captains Flat mining area. *Australian Journal of Marine and Freshwater Research*. 37, 147 157.

- 10.54. Obeid, Eddie (2001) Derelict mines rehabilitation program, extract from New South Wales Legislative Council Hansard. Article no 17 of 18 October 2001.
- 10.55. Pfitzner, K. S., and Bierwirth, P.N., (2000). Using HYMAP airborne imagery and field spectra for the evaluation of mine rehabilitation success, Captains Flat, N.S.W. *Proceedings of the 10th Australasian Remote Sensing and Photogrammetry Conference*
- 10.56. Pollution of the Molonglo (1962) *Canberra Times* November 7, 1962
- 10.57. Renwick, Emma (2004) *Mine waste: those hills of gold at Captains Flat may have provided a fortune for some, but an unfortunate legacy for others: interview with Terry Kiernan, Vicki Dunn, Prof. Norris and Daryl McKone*, Stateline Canberra, broadcast 13 February 2004. Transcript http://www.abc.net.au/stateline/act/content/2003/s1045469.htm
- 10.58. Russell, Vance S. (1974) *Pollution of the Molonglo River by zinc and other metals derived from mining operations*. Canberra: The Author, 1974
- 10.59. Slag removal plans (1975) Canberra Times, 17 May 1975
- 10.60. Sparksman, G. (1983) *Heavy metal pollution in the Molonglo River*. Canberra: Bureau of Mineral Resources, Geology and Geophysics, 1983. 1 v.
- 10.61. State Archives of New South Wales. Concise guide to the State Archives (P-R) Public Works. Papers relating to the rehabilitation of tailing dumps and control of pollution from Captains Flat Mine, 1965-75, CGS 12540 (Kingswood 18/1191.4). 1 bundle. http://www.records.nsw.gov.au/cguide/pr/pwd00009.htm
- 10.62. Thistleton, John (2006) Captain's Flat among our great mines says historian, *Canberra Times*, 24 April 2006: 4
- 10.63. Van Owen, Guy (2006) Competition for mural for 'Flat mine entry *Bungendore Mirror* 9 August 2006: 7
- 10.64. Verdict for grazier: mine damage to pastures; Mr F. B. S. Falkiner, owner of Foxlow Station, ...obtained a verdict yesterday for £840 in an action for damages against Lake George Mines Ltd. (1941) *Sydney Morning Herald* 2 December 1941

- 10.65. Wallbrink, P.J. and P.J. Fogarty, (1998) *Sediment sourcing in the Lake Burley Griffin catchment*. Canberra, CSIRO Land and Water. Technical report 30/98, July 1998.
 - http://www.clw.csiro.au/publications/technical98/tr30-98.pdf
- 10.66. Work on lake mine begins: work to rehabilitate and improve public safety at the old Lake George Mine has restarted (2004) *Canberra Times*, Saturday, 3 July 2004: 12

11. Miners

- 11.1. Another communist-miner's federation plot Captains Flat new victim of Commos (1949) *The Australian worker* 9th March 1949
- 11.2. Big mine to re-open soon: Captain's Flat dispute is settled at Sydney Parley between unions and coy (1954) *Queanbeyan Age* 26 October 1954: 1
- 11.3. 'Black' ban is imposed on big mine (1954) *Queanbeyan Age* Tuesday, August 31, 1954: 1
 11.3.1.
- 11.4. Bullivant, Rebecca (1999) Piece of heritage returned: two ton jinny wheel taken to Cobar 35 years ago returned, *Queanbeyan Age*, Monday 2 November 1999.
- 11.5. Captain's Flat dispute: no prospect of mine opening before Xmas (1954) *Queanbeyan News* Friday, November 12, 1954
- 11.6. Captain's Flat mine idle: miners on strike after dismissal of union leader (1953) *Queanbeyan Age* Friday, July 17, 1953: 1
- 11.7. Clarke, Lee (2000) Miner's memorial project receives support and financial boost *Flat chat*, August '00: 1
- 11.8. Clarke, Lee (2000) The Miner's memorial is dedicated, *Flat chat* November '00: 1
- 11.9. Closure likely of Lake George Mines: unions and management standing firm (1954) *Queanbeyan News* no. 184, Friday June 25, 1954: 1
- 11.10. Collins, W.J. general manager Lake George Mines leaves for New Caledonia (1898) *Queanbeyan Observer* 2 September 1898
- 11.11. [Communism]: Lake George Mines Limited, Captains Flat re distribution of Communist circulars (1940) Item barcode 99125 Series number A467 Series accession number A467/1 Control symbol SF42/24 Contents date range 23 Jan 1940 8 Feb 1940 Location National Archives of Australia

- 11.12. Darby, Robert (1981) The great Captains Flat lockout of 1954 *Searchlight*, November 1981: 16
- 11.13. Darby, Robert (1981) Two major disputes: from its opening in 1937 until its closure in 1962, the Lake George Mining Company's lead-zinc mine at Captains Flat was the scene of at least two major industrial disputes, *The Captains Flat Mining Record*, Saturday, October 3, 1981: 4
- 11.14. Dedication of the Miner's Memorial at Captains Flat (2000) *CDHS Newsletter* No. 371 October/November 2000: 8
- 11.15. Dumbrell, Sally (2000) A Tribute to Charlie Dumbrell: organiser for the Miners' Federation, SEARCH Foundation http://pandora.nla.gov.au/
- 11.16. Explosion at Lake George Mine: Thomas Cornish injured (1898) Queanbeyan Observer 14 January 1898
- 11.17. Explosion kills miner; Eric Robert Righton (1940) *Queanbeyan Age* 14 June 1940
- 11.18. Fatal accident at Captain's Flat: Thomas Cook (1888) *Goulburn Evening Penny Post* 24 November 1888
- 11.19. Fatality at mine: fell 30 feet; A. Ferguson (1945) *Goulburn Post* 6 August 1945
- 11.20. Gagel, Pat (1999) Miner's memorial: the symbolism *Flat chat*, August '99: 3
- 11.21. Industrial trouble at 'Flat (1955) *Queanbeyan News* Friday, 11 June 1954: 1
- 11.22. Inquest into fatal accident at Flat mine: Gordon Thomas Marmont (1957) *Queanbeyan Age*, 9 April 1957
- 11.23. Lake George Mine stops work: miners on strike over dismissal of storeman: dispute at Captain's Flat (1953) *Queanbeyan Age* Friday, May 22, 1953: 1

- 11.24. Lake George Mines: jury engaged in the case of Lake George Mines against Messers Gibbs, Bright and Co and Messers Antony Gibbs, Sons and Co for alleged breach of duty have announced they did not wish to hear further evidence. The case of Lake George Mine versus Mr F.A. Keating (of the firm Antony Gibbs, Sons and Co) was withdrawn (1904) *Queanbeyan Age*, 10 May 1904
- 11.25. Lake George Mining Co employing more people (1896) *Goulburn Evening Penny Post* 10 March 1896
- 11.26. Life was good at the Flat: a brief account of the history of Captains Flat according to former mine worker Ken Winchester (2002) *Queanbeyan Age*, 21 August 2002.
- 11.27. Mawby, Maurice, (1971) [*Interview with Sir Maurice Mawby, mining engineer*] 1971 Oct. 18. National Library of Australia, Oral History Collection.
- 11.28. Mine accident at Captain's Flat: speedup blamed by Councillor (1954) *Queanbeyan Age* 2 March 1954
- 11.29. Miner injured in rock fall: David Burrows [sic] *Queanbeyan Age* Friday, October 25, 1957
- 11.30. Miner killed in explosion at Captain's Flat: David Edward Borrow (1954) *Queanbeyan Age* Friday, November 22, 1957:1
- 11.31. Miners' Memorial (2000) Canberra Times, Sunday 1 October 2000
- 11.32. Miners occupying houses built on a water reserve ordered to leave by Crown Lands bailiff (1897) *Goulburn Post* 7 August 1897
- 11.33. Mining accident (1900) *Queanbeyan Age* Wednesday, 21 July 1900
- 11.34. New era is seen for Captain's Flat: the industrial agreements recently completed between Lake George Mines Pty Ltd and the main unions present and opportunity for the establishment of a new era for Captain's Flat (1955) *Queanbeyan Age* 4 February 1955:1
- 11.35. A patient in the Braidwood hospital named Peter Knight died on Tuesday night last (1898) *Goulburn Evening Penny Post* 5 July 1898

- 11.36. Peter Knight, aged 48, a miner at the Lake George Mine, Captain's Flat (1898) *Queanbeyan Observer* 5 July 1898
- 11.37. People in mining: William Matheson Morgan 1906-1972. http://www.mininghall.com/people/database/details.htm?id=morganw
- 11.38. O'Sullivan, Georgina (1949) Goodwill has weathered long mine strike for Captains Flat: there's been no work for three months- but it's no ghost town *Australian Women's Weekly*, January 29th 1949: 24-25
- 11.39. Payne, Fred. (1978) Interview with Fred Payne, resident of Captain's Flat, N.S.W., former underground machine operator from 1946-1960. National Library of Australia, Oral History Collection.
- 11.40. Overtime bans delay maintenance: reopening of big mine is held up for week (1954) *Queanbeyan Age* Friday, January 15, 1954:1
- 11.41. Quick assistance organised for "'Flat" workers: by officials of the Department of Social Services and Labour and National Service (1962) *Queanbeyan Age* 13 March 1962
- 11.42. Son's death; £774 awarded mother; Lane (1942) *Queanbeyan Age* 27 February 1942
- 11.43. 300 men sacked at mine: shutdown follows stand by unions about contractor (1954) *Queanbeyan Age* 25 June 1954: 1
- 11.44. Two major disputes (1981) *Captains Flat mining record*, October 3rd 1981
- 11.45. Sydney terms rejected by Flat unions: terms of agreement reached in Sydney on October 26 for reopening Lake George Mine were rejected (1954) *Queanbeyan Age* 9 November 1954
- 11.46. Union attitude explained to Captain's Flat miners (1954) *Queanbeyan Age* June 18, 1954
- 11.47. Unions discuss terms with management (1955) *Queanbeyan News* no. 218, Tuesday, January 11, 1955: 1

- 11.48. Way cleared for mine to reopen Feb. 1, (1955) *Queanbeyan Age*, 25th January 1955
- 11.49. Wilson, R.W. (1949) Captains Flat capers: Commos' vile betrayal of workers. *The Australian worker*, 23rd February 1949
- 11.50. Wilson, R. W. (1949) Meeting congratulates A.W.U. declaration on Captains Flat, *The Australian worker*, 2nd March 1949

12. Mining

- 12.1. Anon (1952) Lake George Mine at Captain's Flat in Edwards, A.B.
 (ed.) Geology of Australian Ore Deposits, Fifth Empire Mining and
 Metallurgical Congress, Australia and New Zealand Australian Institute of
 Mining and Metallurgy
- 12.2. Back Creek and Lake George Mining (1896) Goulburn Evening Penny Post 10 March 1896
- 12.3. The British Metal Corporation Limited (1938) Australia's non-ferrous metal industry, *The Times*, 26 January 1938: issue 47902: 63 col A
- 12.4. Business changes: Sir Richard Snedden has been appointed a director of Lake George Mining (1957) *The Times*, January 26, 1957 Issue 53749:13 col E
- 12.5. Captain's Flat (1886) *Queanbeyan Age* 27 May 1886
- 12.6. Captain's Flat (1886) Queanbeyan Age 24 August 1886
- 12.7. Captain's Flat (1893) Goulburn Evening Penny Post 8 June 1893
- 12.8. Captain's Flat active again: new furnace at Koh-i-noor Mine smelting (1887) *Queanbeyan Age* 29 March 1887
- 12.9. Captain's Flat: big production likely: important developments (1927) *Canberra Times* 13 May 1927
- 12.10. Captain's Flat diggings (1882) *Queanbeyan Age* 17 November 1882
- 12.11. Captain's Flat gold and copper mines (1882) *Queanbeyan Age* 28 July 1882
- 12.12. Captain's Flat mines (1896) *Queanbeyan Observer* 8 September 1896

- 12.13. Carpenter, C.W. (1897) *The mines of New South Wales*. Melbourne: George Robertson & Co, 1897. pp 290, 306-308, 398
- 12.14. *A Closer look: Mining near Captains Flat* (1976) CTC7 Television program 12 September 1976. Location, National Film and Sound Archive, Canberra
- 12.15. Company liquidation in 1901: the Report of the Board of Trade on various matters under the Companies (Winding Up) Act has been issued as a parliamentary paper...As regards to another concern, the Lake George Mines (Limited) Mr Smith says that its failure was merely an example of the uncertainty of mining operations...(1903) *The Times*, Friday January 2, 1902: issue 36967: 9 col B
- 12.16. Conan-Davies, Michael. (1990) *Mining heritage of the Canberra region*. Canberra: Australian Mining Industry Council, [1990?] [11] p.
- 12.17. Corporation with £1,100,000 capital formed in London to work Lake George zinc and lead mine (1937) *The Sydney Morning Herald* March 10, 1937:15
- 12.18. Description of mine after rain (1896) *Goulburn Evening Penny Post* 14 March 1896
- 12.19. Drews, F. D. (Friedrich Dechow) (1945) *Gravity concentration of gold from classifier overflow material from Lake George Mines Ltd, Captain's Flat N.S.W.* Melbourne: CSIR and Metallurgical Laboratory, University of Melbourne, 1945.
- 12.20. Drews, F. D. (Friedrich Dechow) (1945) *Treatment of a strake concentrate from Lake George Mines Ltd, Captain's Flat, NSW*. Melbourne: CSIR and Metallurgical Laboratory, University of Melbourne, 1945.
- 12.21. Duff v. Lake George Mines Pty Ltd [1960] 60 S.R. (N.S.W.) 83
- 12.22. Electric light introduced in new smelting works on 15 June 1897; to be extended to mines shortly (1897) *Queanbeyan Observer* 18 June 1897
- 12.23. Garland, Lou (1999) Captains Flat, Gold Net Australia's online magazine, October 1999. http://www.gold-net.com.au/archivemagazines/oct99/62294864.htm#9

- 12.24. Geoff K. Gray Pty Limited (1963) Auction sale: mining equipment, plant, buildings and stores: commencing Monday, 4th February 1963 at 10 a.m. sharp and continuing each day at 10 a.m.: under instructions from Lake George Mines Pty. Ltd at the mine site Captain's Flat, N.S.W.. Sydney: Geoff K. Gray Pty Ltd, 1963
- 12.25. Gibbs Bright and Co (1833-1970) *Records*. Location: University of Melbourne Archives
- 12.26. Golden Cross Resources Ltd. http://www.goldencross.com.au/Properties/Breadalbane/PDF/bdl_geolset.pdf
- 12.27. Haigh, J. E. (1970) Preliminary tests of the EM16 prospecting equipment at Captains Flat, New South Wales 1968. Canberra: Bureau of Mineral Resources, Geology and Geophysics, 1970. 6 p. Series BMR record; 1970/022
- 12.28. Harper, L. F. (1928) Captains Flat mineral belt *New South Wales Department of Mines Annual report*: 107-110
- 12.29. Harris, J. G. (1931) Captain's Flat mine: six months option to suspend working conditions at an end *Queanbeyan Age* 8 Jan 1931
- 12.30. Heavy gale at Captain's Flat wrecks blower house (1897) *Goulburn Herald* 19 May 1897
- 12.31. Henry Copeland, Chairman of Lake George Proprietary Co. visits Belconnen and Ginninderra to inspect certain mining properties (1897) *Goulburn Evening Penny Post* 8 July 1897
- 12.32. Kohinoor Mine (1888) *Queanbeyan Age* 5 September 1888
- 12.33. Lake George Mine Assay Office destroyed by fire (1897) *Goulburn Herald* 10 March 1897
- 12.34. Lake George Mine to go under hammer (1963) *Canberra Times*, Friday February 8, 1963: 19
- 12.35. *Lake George Mines Records*. Location University of Melbourne Archives.

- 12.36. Lake George Mines Proprietary Limited Records, 1920-1965.

 [manuscript]. 17.10 m. Memorandum and Articles of Association, minutes, mineral and other leases, General Managers' reports, correspondence, arbitration material, operating and other statistics, plans, and geological reports. Lake George Mines was incorporated as a limited liability company on 3 September 1930, and altered to a Proprietary Limited company on 5 May 1948. The company conducted mining operations at Captain's Flat, New South Wales. In March 1962 the mine was closed and the company voluntarily liquidated. List of series (15 typed foolscap pages) and Calendar of items (1 typed foolscap page). Archives of Business and Labour, Australian National University
- 12.37. Lake George Mining and Smelting Co. starts working Copper Creek lode (1897) *Goulburn Post* 17 July 1897
- 12.38. Lake George Mining: development progress: this first ordinary general meeting of Lake George Mining Corporation Limited (1937) *The Times*, Wednesday, November 3, 1937: 23 col C
- 12.39. Lake George Mining: larger operating profit (1951) *The Times*, Wednesday, January 10, 1951, issue 51895: 11 col E
- 12.40. Lake George Mining: satisfactory operating results: proposed return of capital: Sir Godfrey Fell's address to the eleventh ordinary annual meeting (1947) *The Times*, Friday 14 November 1947: issue 50918: 7 col F
- 12.41. Lake George Mining stoppage (1954) *The Times*, June 26 1954, issue 52968: 11 col D
- 12.42. Legal notices (1962) No.00753 of 1962 in the High Court of Justice, Chancery Division in the matter of Lake George Mining Corporation re a confirmation of the reduction of the capital *The Times*, Friday, July 6, 1962, issue 55436: 3 col A
- 12.43. McGowan, B. (1993) *Historic mining sites in the Monaro Southern Tablelands Districts of New South Wales*. Sydney, NSW Department of Planning and the Australian Heritage Commission
- 12.44. McGowan, B. (1994) Lost mines: Historic mining sites in the Monaro Southern Tablelands Districts of New South Wales. Canberra, ACT: Barry McGowan, 1994. "Because the book's brief is to describe "lost" mines, the one internationally-famous mining operation in the study area, Captain's

Flat, is excluded on grounds of being neither lost nor unknown. .." http://www.econs.ecel.uwa.edu.au/AMHA/Newslett/newslett9.htm

- 12.45. McGowan, B. (1992) Lost mines of the Canberra district, part 3. This article expands and revises articles in March and September 1991 editions of this journal and presents new material. There were substantial mining works at Boro and Currawang for many years, but with the exception of Currawang and Captains Flat, the Canberra district mining fields were associated more with poverty than prosperity. (Au, MP). *Canberra historical journal*: Sept 1992, no 30: 25-38
- 12.46. Mine loss was £9099 stg. tax, depreciation turned small profit into loss (1954) *Queanbeyan Age* 15 January 1954
- 12.47. New Australian mining company: Lake George Mining Corporation, Limited was incorporated with a capital of £1, 110,000 for the purpose of financing the equipment of the Lake George zinc-lead mine in New South Wales (1937) The Times, March 9, 1937: issue 47628: 22 col F
- 12.48. New Koh-I-Noor Gold and Silver Mining Company: fourth annual general meeting (1894) *Queanbeyan Age* Wednesday, March 7, 1894
- 12.49. New South Wales. Department of Mines. (1929) Captains Flat field, in *Annual report*
- 12.50. New South Wales. Mineral Resources (1999). 200 years of mining, Minefact 81, Oct 1999. http://www.minerals.nsw.gov.au/minfacts/pdfs/81.pdf
- 12.51. Reopening of Lake George Mine: large company formed in London: future of Captains Flat assured: railway to be built (1937) *Canberra Times*, 10 March 1937
- 12.52. Shaft Sinking Equipment for Lake George Mines Ltd, Captains Flat, New South Wales. Control symbol 1945/W/903 Contents date range 1945 – 1945 Extent 2 folios. Item barcode 6955526 Series number A1539 Series accession number A1539/1 Location National Archives of Australia Canberra
- 12.53. State Archives of New South Wales. Concise Guide to the State Archives (L O): Mines H. Lease Branch. Registers of leases of auriferous lands, Tumut and Adelong Mining District (Adelong, Tumut, Tumbarumba, Gundagai, Kiandra, Queanbeyan, Captains Flat, Albury, Cooma), 15 Jun 1875-19 Mar 1908, CGS 10100

- 12.54. State Archives of New South Wales. Concise Guide to the State Archives (L O): Mines. Q. Records of Wardens' Courts and Wardens' Offices. Captain's Flat Warden's Office. 1. Register of unsurveyed tenements, 15 Nov 1886-7 Nov 1889, CGS 10290 (Kingswood 7/8099). 1 vol. 2. Registers of surveyed tenements, 1886-99, CGS10291 Nov 1886-Dec 1895 (Kingswood 7/8100), Sep 1897-Jun 1899 (Kingswood 7/8101). 2 vols.
- 12.55. United Kingdom. The National Archives. Records of the Board of Trade. Records of the Companies Registration Office. Files of dissolved companies. (1896) Company 49642, Company 70495 Lake George Mines Ltd.
- 12.56. Universal Resources (2003) *Quarterly report for period ended 30 December 2003*. http://www.universalresources.com.au/url03dec.pdf
- 12.57. Visit to Captain's Flat: the member for the district visited Captain's Flat (1888) *Queanbeyan Age* 15 February 1888
- 12.58. Wellington v. Lake George Mines Pty Ltd [1962] S.R. (N.S.W.) 326

13. Politics and government

- 13.1. Address to constituents at Captain's Flat in favour of federation by E.W. O'Sullivan (1897) *Goulburn Post* 16 September 1897
- 13.2. A.L.P. Branch reformed at Captain's Flat (1957) *Queanbeyan Age* Friday, July 5, 1957: 1
- 13.3. Branch of National Federal League formed at Captain's Flat (1898) Queanbeyan Observer 22 July 1898
- 13.4. Candidates visit Captain's Flat (1972) *Queanbeyan Age* 17 November 1972: 3
- 13.5. Captain's Flat Clr. to resign (1954) *Queanbeyan Age* 6 August 1954
- 13.6. Councillor resigns: by-election on September 4: the resignation of Mr T.P. Kerr of Captain's Flat was received on Saturday (1954) *Queanbeyan Age* 10 August 1954:1
- 13.7. Councillors clash at Shire meeting (1954) *Queanbeyan Age* 2 March 1954
- 13.8. E. W. O'Sullivan successful meeting at Captains Flat (1898) Queanbeyan Observer 15 July 1898
- 13.9. Government Local government Captains Flat Shire Council (1975) Item barcode 11771199 Series number A6180 Series accession number A6180/1 Control symbol 15/1/75/68 National Archives of Australia
- 13.10. Hostility over shire rolls: Flat candidate claims majority did not vote (1956) *Queanbeyan Age* Tuesday, February 2, 1956:1
- 13.11. Houston, Ben (2006) Palerang rates system breaches Act: resident *Canberra Times* Thursday, August 24, 2006:12
- 13.12. Hughes O'Sullivan debate to be held on 7 February at Captain's Flat *Queanbeyan Observer* 11 February 1898

- 13.13. Of national importance to retain Captain's Flat: opposition leader's opinion (1964) *Queanbeyan Age* 3 November 1964
- 13.14. Search for our 12 apostles: Hon E.W. O'Sullivan 1849-1910 (2001) Queanbeyan Age, Friday 27 April 2001
- 13.15. Shire Council to reinstate men at Flat: inquiry will not be sought (1955) *Queanbeyan Age* 19 July 1955
- 13.16. Shire raises local rate at the Flat: protest rejected, will cost mining company £18,750 (1954) *Queanbeyan Age* 8 February 1954
- 13.17. Shire Sub-committee to draft scheme: £12,000 program of works planned for Captain's Flat: Yarrowlumla Shire (1954) *Queanbeyan Age* Friday, March 26, 1954:1
- 13.18. Split Labor vote at Captain's Flat beat sitting C'lr: the surprise defeat of Mr F. R. Winchester by Mr T. P. Kerr (1953) *Queanbeyan Age* 8 December 1953: 1
- 13.19. Workmen are not to blame says T.P. Kerr: takes the Yarrowlumla Shire Council to task over it comments on the future of the Local Fund gang at Captain's Flat (1956) *Queanbeyan Age* Tuesday, 2 February, 1956:1

14. Post office

- 14.1. Captain's Flat- Bungendore mail coach robbery (1898) *Sydney mail* 20 August 1898: 45
- 14.2. Captain's Flat- Bungendore mail coach robbery(18980 *Australasian* 13 August 1898: 37
- 14.3. Captains Flat Specification for alterations and additions at post office. 22 April 1941. [Box 144] Item barcode 1686628. Also, Captains Flat: specifications for repairs, painting, alterations and additions to post office premises. 13 June 1947. Item barcode 1686659. Series number SP155/1 Series accession number SP155/1 Control symbol PMG39751 Contents date range 1941 1941 These items include AO size plans of the alterations and details of the counter and writing desk. Location National Archives of Australia, Sydney
- 14.4. Captain's Flat telegraph office opened 10 January (1887) Queanbeyan Age 18 January 1887
- 14.5. [Captains Flat telephone to be made a public telephone] Item barcode 1043443 Series number C3131 Series accession number C3131/1 Control symbol C1911/1670 Contents date range 1908 1911 This series is the general correspondence file for the Postmaster Generals Department, State Administration, New South Wales. Location National Archives of Australia, Sydney
- 14.6. Cremer, V.L. (1986) Captains Flat Post Office history
- 14.7. Flat offers home and business: post office for sale (1985) *Canberra Times*, 11 October 1985
- 14.8. Foxlow: a post office to be established (1875) *Queanbeyan Age* 9 January 1875
- 14.9. Happy birthday Captains Flat post office: establishment of service April 16, 1883 (1983) *Captains Flat Mining Record* Sunday October 2, 1983: 1

- 14.10. Home and business unique 'Flat offer: a unique opportunity to buy an historic country home which includes an income of more than \$24,000 a year (1988) *Queanbeyan Age* 28 October 1988
- 14.11. Plans of Captains Flat Post Office [4 plans] Item barcode 1816766 Series number SP1107/1 Series accession number SP1107/1 Control symbol 127 Contents date range 1940 – 1941 Location National Archives of Australia, Sydney
- 14.12. Stanton, Susan (1983) A Coach robbery marks post office centenary *Queanbeyan Age* April 1983
- 14.13. Title deeds (for Joe Bugner's Darling Point flat and Captains Flat Post Office) (1988) *Sydney Morning Herald*, 29 October 1988: 119

15. Railway

- 15.1. Cabinet may agree to railway proposal (1930) *Pictorial* 27 May 1930
- 15.2. Captain's Flat Mining Co. erecting loading platform for coke in Bungendore Railway Yard (1897) *Goulburn Herald* 21 July 1897
- 15.3. Captain's Flat railway (1930) *Sydney Morning Herald* 1 August 1930
- 15.4. Captain's Flat railway Deputation report: deputation to Minister for Works, headed by E.W. O'Sullivan to press for railway (1897) *Goulburn Herald* 8 February 1897
- 15.5. Captain's Flat railway: large protest meeting at Graham's Hotel, Bungendore against extension to Captain's Flat (1897) *Goulburn Herald* 17 February 1897
- 15.6. The current position re 73 class is as follows...7320 & 7324 are actually owned by William Edmund P/L and were obtained with the intention of commencing a tourist operation on the former Captain's Flat branch. http://www.railpage.org.au/ausrail/97dec/msg00463.html
- 15.7. Flat poised for a tour boom: Ken Brandon submitted plans to Yarrowlumla Shire Council for redevelopment of the Captains Flat Railway Station (1989) *Queanbeyan Age*, Wednesday June 26, 1989
- 15.8. The Flat Railway (1897) *Queanbeyan Age*, Wednesday, March 24, 1897.
- 15.9. 'Flat train service cut (1954) *Queanbeyan News* Friday, August 13, 1954
- 15.10. Historian seeks old photos- Leon Oberg of Goulburn writing article for Railway Historical Society Journal (1980) *The Captains Flat Mining Record* Saturday, October 4, 1980
- 15.11. It's the end of the line: Bungendore-Captains Flat Railway to close (1968) *Sydney Morning Herald*, 22 August 1968

- 15.12. Memories of the 'hey-days' revived at Captain's Flat: NSW Rail Transport Museum trip from Sydney (1966) *Queanbeyan Age* 25 January 1966: 1
- 15.13. The Ned Kelly special (1969) *Railway transportation*, November 1969
- 15.14. New railway spells more work (1930) *Labor daily* 27 May 1930
- 15.15. New South Wales. Legislative Assembly. Parliamentary Standing Committee on Public Works. (1929) *Report: together with minutes of evidence relating to the proposed railway from Bungendore to Captains Flat.* Sydney, 1929.
- 15.16. New South Wales. Parliament. (1937) *Debates Second series*. Bungendore to Captains Flat Railway Agreement Ratification Bill. v. 153:2201-2222, 2 December 1937
- 15.17. New South Wales. Parliament. (1937) *Debates Second series*. Bungendore to Captains Flat Railway Agreement Ratification Bill. v. 153:2336-2359, 8 December 1937
- 15.18. [Newcastle Flyer, c1966: other scenes] documentary film including footage of a fundraising steam train trip to Captains Flat. Location, National Film and Sound Archive, Canberra
- 15.19. Railway to Captain's Flat: big public meeting at Queanbeyan (1931) *Queanbeyan Age* 30 January 1931
- 15.20. Railways N.S.W. Bungendore Captains Flat. (1929-30) Series control number A786 F100/1. The Commonwealth agency was the Development Branch, Prime Minister's Department. National Archives of Australia, Canberra.
- 15.21. Railway Station can be used as a residence: Yarrowlumla Shire approval (1974) *Queanbeyan Age*, 6 March 1974
- 15.22. Reduced rail freights would assist the 'Flat (1958) *Queanbeyan Age* 10 October 1958

- 15.23. Setback for tourism plan: Captain Flat rail link ends: plans to reopen the old Bungendore to Captain's Flat railway line as a tourism project appear to have foundered (1984) *Queanbeyan Age* Wednesday, 16 May 1984
- 15.24. Shire protests over 'Flat line closure (1968) *Queanbeyan Age* 19 July 1968
- 15.25. State Cabinet subjects for today: Captain's Flat railway (1930) Sydney Morning Herald 27 May 1930
- 15.26. Stokes, H. J. W. (1984) The Captain's Flat Branch, in *Railways of the Canberra and Monaro Districts*. Canberra: Railway Historical Society (A.C.T. Division), 1984
- 15.27. Witton, R. (1980) The Bungendore to Captains Flat Branch line *Australian Railway Historical Society Bulletin* vol. 31 no. 517, November 1980:1
- 15.28. Witton, R. (1982) Bungendore to Captains Flat line *Captains Flat Mining Record*, Sunday, 3 October 1982:3
- 15.29. Working on the 'Flat railway (1981) *Captains Flat Mining Record*, 3 October 1981

16. Roads

- 16.1. £250,000 Shire project completed: 'Flat road sealed (1965)

 Queanbeyan Age 12 March 1965: 1
- 16.2. Ashcroft, W. H. (1938) Captains Flat- Bungendore Road via Hoskinstown "the above road is responsible for torture and misery untold…." *Queanbeyan Age*, 8 November 1938
- 16.3. Braidwood and Queanbeyan road public meeting: an important meeting took place at the residence of Mr M. Sheahan Black Heath (now Hoskinstown) Molonglo of persons interested in the Queanbeyan Braidwood Road via Molonglo Gap (1869) *Queanbeyan Age* Thursday, April 1st 1869:1
- 16.4. Bridge condition concern in shire (1995) *Queanbeyan Age*, 20 March 1995
- 16.5. Bungendore to Captain's Flat: road survey (PF7) C.H. Greville, J.D. Byrne surveyors (1937) Survey field books, held in State Records NSW Western Sydney
- 16.6. Captain's Flat deputation to Prime Minister (1962) *Queanbeyan Age* 20 March 1962: 1
- 16.7. Captain's Flat road: proposed to widen bends near Wanna Wanna in 1937 (1936) *Canberra Times*, Tuesday, November 3, 1936
- 16.8. Clarke, Lee (1999) Another section of the Captains Flat road sealed *Flat chat*, July '99: 1
- 16.9. Commonwealth assistance towards cost of sealing Queanbeyan-Captains Flat Road (1962) Item barcode 1344102 Services A4940 Menzies and Holt Ministries Cabinet 'C' single number series. National Archives of Australia, Canberra.
- 16.10. Estimated cost of reconstructing the Captain's Flat road is £170,000 (1962) *Queanbeyan Age* 17 July 1962: 1

- 16.11. Four weeks estimated to complete 'Flat road: £215,000 project nears completion (1965) *Queanbeyan Age* 12 February 1965
- 16.12. Foxlow Bridge across Molonglo River on road from Bungendore to Captain's Flat via Hoskingtown contract for construction let (1896) *Queanbeyan Observer* 7 July 1896
- 16.13. Foxlow Bridge: contractor arrives to start construction (1896) *Goulburn Herald* 9 September 1896
- 16.14. Handsome and well –constructed wooden bridge across the Molonglo River at Captain's Flat opened to public traffic (1863) *Golden Age* Thursday, 4 June 1863
- 16.15. Objecting to moving sign post: the Captain's Flat Senior Citizens and Pensioner Club it viewed with dismay the proposed relocation of the 60km sign post from Jermyn Street to just short of Foxlow Street (1986) *Queanbeyan Age* Friday, 13 June 1986
- 16.16. Protest meeting on road: on the state of the Jerangle Road via Captains Flat (1991) *Queanbeyan Age*, 6 March 1991
- 16.17. Reconstruction of Canberra/Captains Flat road Item barcode
 1861621 Series number A463 Series accession number A463/63 Control
 symbol 1961/5614 Contents date range 28 Apr 1960 25 May 1962 Location
 National Archives of Australia Canberra
- 16.18. A Road with a history: a surveyor vindicated (1889) *Queanbeyan Age* 17 August 1889
- 16.19. Roads Canberra to Captains Flat Item barcode 4379365 Series number A987 Series accession number A987/4 Control symbol E1426 Location National Archives of Australia Canberra
- 16.20. Second road to coast via 'Flat: proposal rejected by residents (1974) Queanbeyan Age 29 July 1974
- 16.21. Shire rejects 'Flat name proposal (1965) *Queanbeyan Age* 9 November 1965

- 16.22. Shire uncertainty about future at Captain's Flat: conflicting statements were made at Yarrowlumla Shire Council's meeting yesterday during discussion on letting kerbing and guttering work to private contracts (1954) *Queanbeyan Age* 6 July 1954
- 16.23. Survey on Jerangle Road (1964) *Queanbeyan Age*, 21 July 1964
- 16.24. That little road dilemma: the Jerangle Road is bitumened half way down Baldwin Hill, in the Yarrowlumla Shire, the Monaro Shire part of the road is gravel (1978) *Flat chat* 5th ed 19 June 1978:2
- 16.25. Three new culverts erected on main road from Newtown to Bogtown (1897) *Queanbeyan Observer* 3 March 1897

17. School of Arts and education

- 17.1. Annual report highlights Captains Flat successes. (1998) *Queanbeyan Age*, 27 February 1998.
- 17.2. Captains Flat has Catholic school: St Brigid's new church-school was blessed and opened by His Lordship, Most Rev. G. Young D.D. on 7th November (1964) *Our Cathedral Chimes* December 19, 1948: 10
- 17.3. Captains Flat is planning a School Council (1991) *Queanbeyan Age* Monday, 30th September 1991
- 17.4. Captains Flat opposes busing: move to stop secondary schooling (1976) *Canberra Times*, October 19, 1976
- 17.5. Captains Flat Pre-School: began in 1982 held in the local community hall, an old picture theatre (1991) *Queanbeyan Age* 25 June 1991
- 17.6. Captains Flat Primary School: all about year 6 (2005) *Flat Chat* Issue 2 December 2005: 5
- 17.7. Captains Flat school news (1967) *Queanbeyan Age*, 28 February 1967
- 17.8. Captain's Flat school notes (1966) *Queanbeyan Age* 16 August 1966
- 17.9. Captain's Flat School of Arts flourishing (1895) *Queanbeyan Observer* 7 May 1895
- 17.10. Captain's Flat School of Arts general meeting (1897) *Goulburn Herald* 24 February 1897
- 17.11. Centenary in April at school: 21-22 April (1984) *Queanbeyan Age*, Wednesday 15 February 1984
- 17.12. Central School has enrolment of 230 (1964) *Queanbeyan Age* 7 February 1964

- 17.13. Cochran, Peter (1993) Captains Flat Public School, extract from New South Wales Legislative Assembly Hansard. Article 19 of 26 October 1993.
- 17.14. 'Department does care for 'Flat': inspector answers criticism (1977) Queanbeyan Age 4 March 1977: 3
- 17.15. Extra teacher now at 'Flat (1977) Queanbeyan Age, 22 April 1977
- 17.16. Fancy dress frolic at Captain's Flat (1970) *Queanbeyan Age* June 1970
- 17.17. Flat essay the winner: Captains Flat is the subject of the ACT Demographic & Labour Market Essay Prize won by Stephen Murray (1991) *Queanbeyan Age*, 29 April 1991.
- 17.18. Flat school has scored top pass (1992) *Queanbeyan Age*, 15 October 1992
- 17.19. High costs left little for the P.&C.: Captains Flat Central School has low returns from balls (1954) *Queanbeyan Age* 23 March 1954
- 17.20. Higher schooling ending: Captains Flat shuts section (1979) *Canberra Times*, 14 December 1979
- 17.21. Mrs J. Lazarus announces to residents of Captain's Flat the school at Cooper Creek reopens 18 July with Miss Kiernan in charge (1898) Queanbeyan Observer 12 July 1898
- 17.22. New South Wales. Department of School Education. Quality Assurance Directorate. (1993) Captains Flat Public School review: term 3, 1993. Wollongong, N.S.W.; Southern Quality Assurance Unit, 1993.
- 17.23. Plea for fourth teacher refused (1977) *Canberra Times*, 12 March 1977
- 17.24. Pre-school open! Saturday 15 June, Peter Cochran, Member for Monaro opened the new premises (1991) *Queanbeyan Age* 17 June 1991

- 17.25. Robert wins science high distinction: Robert Lennon wins High Distinction Certificate in the Australian Schools Science Competition (1994) Queanbeyan Age, 18 July 1994
- 17.26. School bus service suspended yesterday (1964) *Queanbeyan Age* 26 May 1964
- 17.27. School colours issue: once again the school uniform issue has emerged (1984) *Flat Chat* November '94:1
- 17.28. School reunion [notice] (2005) *Daily Telegraph*, 15 February 2005
- 17.29. School to continue at the Flat: staved off closure of secondary school section (1976) *Canberra Times*, 21 October 1976
- 17.30. Stanton, Susan. (1984) *Captain's Flat Public School 1884-1984*. Captain's Flat: Captain's Flat Public School, 1984. 42 p.: ill.
- 17.31. Teacher of piano and theory (1898) Mrs Jos. Lazarus, Captains Flat, late of Queanbeyan *Queanbeyan Observer* 7 January 1898
- 17.32. Teachers' appointments (1897) Goulburn Herald 24 March 1897
- 17.33. Teachers-parents strikes: Captains Flat teacher shortage ultimatum issued (1977) *Queanbeyan Age* 25 February 1977
- 17.34. Whan, Steve (2003) Monaro Electorate preschool funding: Jindabyne Cabinet Meeting, extract from New South Wales Legislative Assembly Hansard. Article no. 44 of 29 May 2003.

18. Social history

- 18.1. £20,000 youth centre for Captain's Flat (1956) *Queanbeyan Age* 22 June 1956
- 18.2. \$2.7 m driver search (2000) *The Australian*. 2 December 2000
- 18.3. 200 acres of Crown Land has been reserved on a site for a village of Captain's Flat (1886) *Goulburn Herald* 7 August 1886
- 18.4. Aalborg, Gordon (1978) Menace of past is now ghost town king, *Canberra Sunday Life*, 29 January 1978
- 18.5. Adaminaby, Captains Flat to get mobile coverage (2002) *Canberra Times*, Friday 12 July 2002
- 18.6. ADF Aircraft Serial Numbers, A2/N9 Bell UH-1B/D/H Iroquois. Delivered 08/01/63. Served with 5 Sqn. Crashed 02/04/69, Captains Flat NSW. Main rotor separated in mid-flight and crashed at Captain's Flat, NSW. Crew; PLTOFF E. Collett, (Pilot) & FLGOFF I. McLean. http://www.adf-serials.com/3a2.shtml
- 18.7. Afforestation scheme proposed at the 'Flat (1964) *Queanbeyan Age* 14 July 1964: 1
- 18.8. Aircraft Crashes Record Office (2004) Archives 1979, De Havilland DHC-2 Beaver, aerial agriculture, 6 December 1979
 http://www.baaa-acro.com/archives/accident 1979.htm
- 18.9. All go at the 'Flat: the Captains Flat Task Force has held its last meeting for 1986 (1986) *Queanbeyan Age* Friday, 28 November 1986
- 18.10. Allen v. Kerr and Anor Nos. CA40691/94; CL 11500/94. Supreme Court of New South Wales, Sydney, 25 May 1995
- 18.11. Appointment of District Agent at Captains Flat NSW Item barcode 1368589 Series number A884 Series accession number A884/9 Control symbol A457 Contents date range circa 1940 circa 1976. This series of administrative files belonged to the Department of Social Security. Location National Archives of Australia, Canberra

- 18.12. A.P.P.U. meeting well attended: Captain's Flat branch meeting of the Australian Primary Producer's Union (1966) *Queanbeyan Age* 6 September 1966
- 18.13. Arthur Vasil purchase of property Captains Flat NSW Item barcode 5455741 Item barcode 1018864 Series number SP351/1 Series accession number SP351/1 Control symbol CL13948 Contents date range 1909 1948. The series are registered files containing full history on acquisition, resumption and all details of Land Sites in relation to Commonwealth property in New South Wales. Location National Archives of Australia, Sydney
- 18.14. Around the diocese: timber bottle neck prevents new Catholic church being built (1947) *Our Cathedral Chimes* 20 July 1947
- 18.15. Ashcroft, W. H. (1949) Early history of Captain's Flat. *Queanbeyan Age*, 14 March 1949.
- 18.16. At King George V memorial: district ex-servicemen to welcome royal couple (1954) *Queanbeyan Age* Friday, January 8, 1954: 1
- 18.17. Attendances at theatre dwindle: Yarrowlumla Shire Council may have to close Plaza Theatre (1964) *Queanbeyan Age* 21 July 1964
- 18.18. Auction sale of crown lands, Saturday 15 March 1938: advertisement reproduced (1983) *Queanbeyan Age*, Friday 25 November 1983
- 18.19. Australian Bureau of Statistics 2001 census of population and housing, Captains Flat UCL 117600 http://www.absat.sa.gov.au/abs/abs@census.nsf/4079a1bbd2a04b80ca256b9d020208f92/44743991e76cda5cca256c63002c4617
- 18.20. Ayres, Elsie, (1983) [*Interview with Elsie Ayres and Phillip Ayres*] Primary Material: 1983 July 3.
- 18.21. Back to Captain's Flat this weekend: 1978 'Back to Captain's Flat' reunion (1978) *Queanbeyan Age* 30 September 1978:12
- 18.22. 'Back to the 'Flat' Celebrations to provide funds for hostel (1969) *Queanbeyan Age* 15 July 1969:1

- 18.23. Baldwin, Arthur (1978) *Interview with Arthur Baldwin, resident of Captain's Flat, N.S.W.* [sound recording] / interviewer: Glen Schwinghamer. 1 sound cassette. Series of interviews with residents of Captains Flat, N.S.W. Long term residents speak of their occupations and recall the changes witnessed over the years in their town. Recording begins on Tape 1, Side B. Sound quality is poor. Arthur Baldwin worked for the Shire Council at Captains Flat for "a long time". In the 1920's he worked for "Foxlow". Recorded during the period July 27 to Sept. 3 1978 in Captains Flat, N.S.W.
- 18.24. Blackley, Anne (2004) Starting the Ball on the right foot: first annual ball (2004) *Bungendore Mirror* 17 November 2004: 3
- 18.25. Blaikie, George (2003) The Little Digger and the Bull (Billy Hughes and Major General, Sir Granville De Laune Ryrie), This was Australia, *The Sun*, 31 December 1984: 10 in *The Black and White of Captains Flat*, April 2003: 2
- 18.26. Bogtown v Newtown: correspondence (1895) *Queanbeyan Age* Saturday, October 19, 1895
- 18.27. Boogs, Monika and Frank Cassidy (2001) Region wakes to late blanket of snow, *Canberra Times*, Tuesday 28 August 2001
- 18.28. A boomer of a day at Captains Flat auction: contents of Captains Flat Museum owned until a few weeks ago by Hector Davies were auctioned (1969) *Canberra Times*, 24 February 1969
- 18.29. Boomtown Captains Flat 1899, (2003) Captains Flat Mining Record Saturday, Jan 16, 1889, In *The Black & White of Captains Flat*, April 2003: 1
- 18.30. Bowman, Mary. (1978) *Interview with Mary Bowman, resident of Captain's Flat, N.S.W.* National Library of Australia, Oral History Collection.
- 18.31. Brief notes from around Captain's Flat: Captain's Flat Co-Operative Society opened a grocery; Captain's Flat Workman's Club purchased land for children's playground; Mr T.P. Kerr elected secretary Captain's Flat Workman's Club; plans to proceed with a Youth Club (1956) *Queanbeyan Age* 31 July 1957

- 18.32. Bullivant, Rebecca (1998) Captains Flat pool: a sign of the times, *Queanbeyan Age*, 20 February 1998
- 18.33. Bullivant, Rebecca (1998) Villagers stranded: close of Welcome Mart and petrol station 24 July 1998 *Queanbeyan Age*, 5 August 1998
- 18.34. Bureaucrats take over: three samples of material proven suitable for brickmaking (1970) *Queanbeyan Age* 20 November 1970: 1
- 18.35. Callinan, Rory (2001) Is this a terrorist camp in our midst? War on Terror ASIO raid. *The Sydney Daily Telegraph*. 2 November 2001
- 18.36. "Captain"- the working bullock- history of Captains Flat (1980) Captains Flat Mining Record Saturday, October 4, 1980:5
- 18.37. Captain Flat bricks (1926) *Canberra Times* 24 September 1926
- 18.38. Captain's Flat (1886) Queanbeyan Age 21 December 1886
- 18.39. Captain's Flat (1893) Goulburn Evening Penny Post 8 June 1893
- 18.40. Captain's Flat: ...all the low ground covered in water, the result of a thunderstorm (1896) *Goulburn Evening Penny Post* 14 March 1896
- 18.41. Captain's Flat (1897) Goulburn Herald 7 June 1897
- 18.42. Captain's Flat (1897) *Sydney Mail*, 3 July 1897: 44
- 18.43. Captain's Flat Brass Band to give entertainment in aid of purchase of more instruments (1897) *Queanbeyan Observer* 3 March 1897
- 18.44. Captain's Flat business sites (1888) *New South Wales Legislative Assembly votes and proceedings* 1888/89 (1) 128; 1887/88 (1) 03, 491, 592; 1887/88 (8) 491, 537
- 18.45. Captain's Flat Catholic Church building fund (1897) *Goulburn Herald* 14 May 1897

- 18.46. Captains Flat centenary celebration programme (1983) *Captains Flat Mining Record* Sunday October 2, 1983:4
- 18.47. Captain's Flat Church of England: officers elected (1897) *Goulburn Post* 21 August 1897
- 18.48. Captain's Flat Common: meeting of the Trustees held at the Silver Age Hotel (1896) *Queanbeyan Age*, Saturday 22 August 1896
- 18.49. Captains Flat Community Association annual general meeting (2005) *Flat Chat* Issue 2 December 2005: 6
- 18.50. Captain's Flat deputation: Premier's assurance (1964) *Queanbeyan Age* 23 October 1964:1
- 18.51. The Captain's Flat fire: coronial inquest into the fire at Ferris's large store returns an open verdict (1910) *Queanbeyan Age*, 26 August 1910
- 18.52. Captains Flat: full of colour. Helen Hunt traces the development of a time deserted mining town (1989) *Canberra Times*, Saturday 13 May 1989
- 18.53. Captains Flat garage set to reopen (1998) *Flat chat*, October '98: 1
- 18.54. Captains Flat gets a better 'phone service: an upgraded telephone exchange has been announced (1988) *Queanbeyan Age*, Wednesday, 2 November 1988
- 18.55. Captains Flat invaded: by Royal Military College cadets training exercise, *Canberra Times*, 2 April 1977
- 18.56. Captains Flat is fading fast (1970) *Canberra Times*, 21st July 1970: 13
- 18.57. Captain's Flat mail coach held up and robbed by two men (1898) *Queanbeyan Observer* 12, 19 & 23 August 1898
- 18.58. Captain's Flat mail coach robber arrested and charged: John King employee at Carwoola (1898) *Queanbeyan Observer* 14 October 1898

- 18.59. *Captains Flat Mining Record* (1898) first issue published 15 January 1898
- 18.60. Captains Flat Mining record now incorporated with Queanbeyan Observer (1898) *Queanbeyan Observer* 1 July 1898
- 18.61. Captains Flat NSW Deputation to Minister re disabilities. Item barcode 44984 Series number A1 Series accession number A1/15 Control symbol 1930/8523 Contents date range 1928 – 1930. Location National Archives of Australia, Canberra
- 18.62. *Captains Flat NSW* [Box No 753] Item barcode 1087357 Series number SP857/6 Series accession number SP857/6. Control symbol PH/716 Contents date range 1942-1951. This series is the correspondence for the Works and Services Branch, New South Wales, now known as the Defence Estate Organisation. Location National Archives of Australia, Sydney
- 18.63. Captains Flat Police Court report: William Butler, Charles Sacagio and Allan O'Neill (1898) *Queanbeyan Observer* 25 January 1898
- 18.64. Captains Flat police station has a face lift (1980) *Captains Flat Mining Record* Saturday, October 4, 1980
- 18.65. Captain's Flat population estimated to be 1200 (1897) *Goulburn Post* 4 September 1897
- 18.66. Captain's Flat Progress Committee: reorganised at a meeting at Goggin's Hotel (1897) *Goulburn Herald* 26 April 1897
- 18.67. Captain's Flat: reserve no. 2083 of 31 July 1886 made for a village site (1887) *Queanbeyan Age* 22 March 1887
- 18.68. Captain's Flat revisited (1888) *Queanbeyan Age* 27 June 1888
- 18.69. Captain's Flat; revival in mining; Constable Lowther stationed (1927) *Canberra Times* 15 November 1927: 1
- 18.70. Captains Flat rolls out the red carpet!: Captains Flat annual ball (2005) *Flat Chat* issue 2 December 2005: 1

- 18.71. Captains Flat: social; the social in aid of the Convent fund was held in Cooper's Hall Monday night last where about 30 couples put in an appearance (1899) *Queanbeyan Age* Saturday, 16 September 1899
- 18.72. Captain's Flat surveyor instructed to survey town site at Copper Creek (1897) *Goulburn Post* 26 August 1897
- 18.73. Captain's Flat trade roaring: Reynolds Brothers obtain contract for plumbing and roofing all the Company's buildings (1897) *Queanbeyan Observer* 15 January 1897
- 18.74. Captains new captain makes history: Alison Seymour first female fire brigade captain (1995) *Canberra Times*, 6 August 1995
- 18.75. "Carwoola Estate": to be sold in seven blocks (1928) *Canberra Times* 13 January 1928: 7
- 18.76. Carwoola Homestead and Outbuildings, Captains Flat Rd via Queanbeyan, NSW. Register of the National Estate, id 1171. http://www.deh.gov.au
- 18.77. Carwoola has interesting history (1968) *Queanbeyan Age* 9 April 1968
- 18.78. Carwoola, New South Wales; the property of James Frederick Maslin (1929) in *Pastoral homes of Australia*
- 18.79. "Carwoola" to be sold in sub-division (1928) *Canberra Times* 13 January 1928
- 18.80. Central body formed for Captain's Flat progress (1954) Queanbeyan Age 2 March 1954
- 18.81. Central Mapping Authority of New South Wales (1983) 1:25 000 property map series New South Wales Australia .8726-I-N Captains Flat. Bathurst, NSW, CMA, 1983
- 18.82. Clack, Peter (2002) Captains Flat plans path towards future riches *Canberra Times*, 13 August 2002

- 18.83. Clack, Peter (2000) Memories of fatal night still haunt Gwen Winchester, *Canberra Times*, Sunday 2 July 2000
- 18.84. Clarke, Lee (1996) Captains Flat RSL opens its new wing *Flat chat* March '96: 1
- 18.85. Clarke, Lee (1999) Explosions on Waltman's Hill *Flat chat* September '99: 1
- 18.86. Clarke, Lee (1998) Local landmark leaves for Bredbo: no. 2 Braidwood road removed to Bredbo *Flat chat*, March '98: 1
- 18.87. Clarke, Lee (2000) Museum of mining, motorbikes and memories began on an empty tank, The *Canberra Times*, January 18th, 2000 page 7 http://car.anu.edu.au/jannewsfull.html
- 18.88. Clearance sale Molalabar near Captains Flat (1946) *Queanbeyan Age* 26 July 1946
- 18.89. Closing order threatened: 'Flat service station (1968) *Queanbeyan Age* 2 July 1968
- 18.90. Coach licence granted to carry passengers from Bungendore to Captain's Flat (1897) *Goulburn Herald* 26 July 1897
- 18.91. Coaches: two runs daily through Hoskingtown to and from Captains Flat (1897) *Goulburn Post* 3 August 1897
- 18.92. Commercial Hotel licence refused for Coppertown (1897) Goulburn Post 2 November 1897
- 18.93. Community Centre, Captains Flat (1968) Files relating to licences for theatres and public halls, Series no. 15318 State Records New South Wales.
- 18.94. Concert held in aid of Captain's Flat Town Band (1897) *Queanbeyan Observer* 20 August 1898
- 18.95. Contract let for building of Presbyterian Church (1897) Queanbeyan Observer 15 January 1987

- 18.96. Convent and school to be built at Captain's Flat (1897) *Goulburn Herald* 3 March 1897
- 18.97. Co-operative Society for Captain's Flat (1955) *Queanbeyan Age* 9
 December 1955
- 18.98. Council fights deep to save dying town (1964) *Canberra Times*, Thursday 9 July 1964
- 18.99. Courthouse and Police Station allowed for in parliamentary estimates for sum of £600 (1897) *Queanbeyan Observer* 2 February 1897
- 18.100. Cross, Rex (1981) Captains Flat: a brief history, *The Captains Flat Mining Record, Saturday*, October 3, 1981:13
- 18.101. Cross, Rex Lawrence (1985) Chapter 5 Events as they occurred in Queanbeyan and the Molonglo Plains 1848-1900 in, *Bygone Queanbeyan*. Rev. ed. Queanbeyan: Queanbeyan Publishing Co., 1985.
- 18.102. Council fights to save dying town (1964) *Canberra Times* 9 July 1964
- 18.103. Darby, Robert (1981) Plan to put region down (on tape) oral history project, *Searchlight*, October 1981: 11
- 18.104. Dargaville, Jane (1995) Kevin remembers days of mining and footy *Canberra Times*, Sunday 1st October 1995:3
- 18.105. Dean, John T. (2001) *Rail, ale and fields of gold: a family history*, Sydney: John T. Dean, 2001. Chapter on the Goggin family at Captains Flat.
- 18.106. Demolition of shops: Yarrowlumla Shire Council is to proceed with the demolition of two shops in Foxlow Street damaged by fire (1964) *Oueanbeyan Age* Tuesday, 29 September 1964
- 18.107. Destructive fire at Captains Flat: Mr Hincksman's store run by tenant Ferris burnt (1910) *Queanbeyan Age* Tuesday, 23 August 1910
- 18.108. Development plan protest against supermarket and petrol station (1993) *Queanbeyan Age*, 3 May 1993

- 18.109. Dog poisoner strikes at Captain's Flat (1972) *Queanbeyan Age* 29 August 1972
- 18.110. Dogs 'menace' at Captain's Flat (1954) *Queanbeyan Age*, Friday, July 30, 1954: 1
- 18.111. Doherty, Megan (2000) Police suspect inside knowledge in daring Queensland heist, *Canberra Times*, Sunday 3 December 2000.
- 18.112. Duntroon cadets on exercise: Captains Flat (1967) NWS9 news footage, 27 November 1967. Location, National Film and Sound Archive, Canberra.
- 18.113. Early scenes of Canberra (1927?) black & white motion picture, 9 minutes. Early scenes of Canberra and the surrounding district including mining at Captains Flat.
- 18.114. Eco-terrorists blamed for \$1m sabotage: forest machinery damaged at Tallaganda State Forest (1997) *Illawarra Mercury*, 18 July 1997
- 18.115. Edward Cecil Thompson v. Australian Capital Television Pty Ltd and Publishing and Broadcasting Pty Ltd and TCN Channel Nine Pty Limited. 129 ACTR 14[1997] ACTSC 58 (20 August 1997)
- 18.116. English, W. Bruce (1985) Where the Molonglo runs: Canberra, 1985. 86, [64] leaves; ill., maps, bibliography; leaves 77-85; Thesis (B.A.(Hons.)) Australian National University, Canberra, A.C.T., 1985. Annotation: Survey and analysis of archaeological sites along a section of the Molonglo River east of Queanbeyan; description of local environment and resources.
- 18.117. Faces of Lyons Margaret Bunfield (2005) *Lyons Link* October 2005: 5
- 18.118. Falkiner, B. (1981) Foxlow on the Molonglo, *The Captains Flat Mining Record*, Saturday, October 3, 1981: 12
- 18.119. Family's half a century at the 'Flat: there have been Kerr family members living at Captain's Flat for half a century (1978) *Queanbeyan Age* 2 June 1978

- 18.120. Farewell: Rev. Fr. Brian Maher, Catholic Church Parish priest (1992) *Queanbeyan Age* 17 July 1992
- 18.121. Fire gutted house at Flat: the weatherboard cottage in Schardt Street of Mr Ernest Parkinson (1953) *Queanbeyan Age* Friday, May 22, 1953: 1
- 18.122. Fire razes Captain's Flat home in quick time: home of Joe and Stella Doyle (1960) *Queanbeyan Age* Tuesday, 15 March 1960
- 18.123. Firefighter honoured: Captains Flt property owner Brett Falkiner received long service award (1993) *Queanbeyan Age*, 25 October 1993
- 18.124. Fitzhardinge, Verity (1967) On a road to a future "It spoils a good ghost town to come alive". *Canberra Times*, 6 December 1967
- 18.125. Flat chat (1978-1984) Captains Flat Central School
- 18.126. Flat Catholic ball a reminder of the past (1970) *Queanbeyan Age* 23 October 1970: 5
- 18.127. 'Flat deputation to meet Premier: a deputation from the Captain's Flat Industrial Development Committee will interview the Premier, the Hon. J. B. Renshaw to place options for development (1964) *Queanbeyan Age* 20 October 1964: 1
- 18.128. 'Flat gossip: the Captain's Flat Worker's Club closed until further notice (1954) *Queanbeyan News* Friday, August 13, 1954
- 18.129. 'Flat looks like Luna Park: for the three day celebrations organised by the "Ned Kelly Committee" (1969) *Queanbeyan Age* 22 August 1969
- 18.130. Flat poised for a tour boom: express service! (1990) *Queanbeyan Age* Wednesday, 20 June 1990
- 18.131. 'The Flat' returns to life (1973) Canberra Times, August 15, 1973
- 18.132. Flat scoring all-station TV reception (1992) *Queanbeyan Age*, 30 March 1992

- 18.133. "The Flat" the town that will not die (1962) *Canberra Times*, March 13, 1962
- 18.134. Flat TV setback (1994) Queanbeyan Age 28 October 1994
- 18.135. For sale by tender: buildings for removal Captain's Flat, N.S.W. on account of Lake George Mines Pty Ltd (1962) *Queanbeyan Age* 19 June 1962
- 18.136. Foxlow, Bungendore, New South Wales the property of Franc B. S. Falkiner (1929) in *Pastoral Homes of Australia*, 1929
- 18.137. Foxlow on the Molonglo (1981) *Captains Flat Mining Record* Saturday, 3 October 1981
- 18.138. Foxlow Station (N.S.W.). Records, 1886-1959 [manuscript] 8 m. 10 cm. Correspondence re Station Management, 1920-1958; Ledgers, 1920-1958; Journal, 1920-1955; Cash Books, 1936-1955; Wages Books, 1920-1958; Stud Books, 1903-1945, Wool Papers, 1918-1954; and Quarterly Stock Papers, 1920-1957. (One volume of the Ration Books dates back to 1886) Foxlow is situated on the Captain's Flat Road, 16 miles from Bungendore, N.S.W. In 1920, F. B. S. Falkiner Snr. of Haddon Rig purchased the property from George Osborne, and created a stud of Red Poll Cattle and Percheron Horses. F. B. S. Falkiner died in 1929 and his son, F. B. S. Falkiner Jnr, who inherited, was accidentally killed in 1941. The Estate was then held in trust for B. S. Falkiner, son of F. B. S. Falkiner Jnr. Archives of Business and Labour, Australian National University 107.
- 18.139. Functions and Visits Their Excellencies Sir Paul and Lady
 Hasluck in New South Wales Gymkhana and Sports Day, Captains Flat, 24
 August 1969 Item barcode 4957861 Series number A2880 Series accession
 number 2001/02932755 Control symbol HASLUCK 1/1/9 Contents date
 range 22 Aug 1969 22 Aug 1969 Extent 1 folio Location National Archives
 of Australia Canberra
- 18.140. Gaind, Rama (2002) Amazing coincidence: Rick Radburn memories, *Queanbeyan Age*, Wednesday 15 May 2002
- 18.141. Gaind, Rama (2004) Catastrophe averted, *Queanbeyan Age*, Thursday, 8 January 2004
- 18.142. Gaind, Rama (2003) Family feels honoured: Colin Winchester Oval *Queanbeyan Age*, 4 December 2003

- 18.143. Gibney, H. J. (1969) Case of the third man: what happened at Sawpit Gully? Was there a miscarriage of justice in the hanging of Mir Cassim? *Canberra Times*, 22 March 1969
- 18.144. Gillman, Barrie (1974) \$1-million brickworks ends 10-year battler to upgrade 'Flat *Queanbeyan Age* 18 March 1974: 1
- 18.145. Gillman, Barrie (1973) Can history repeat itself at the Flat? (1973) *Queanbeyan Age* 7 November 1973
- 18.146. Goggin & Cooper doing good business in new Lake George Hotel (1898) *Queanbeyan Observer* 14 January 1898
- 18.147. Governor General accepts invitation to the 'Flat: Sir Paul Hasluck to attend on Sunday (1969) *Queanbeyan Age* 19 August 1969
- 18.148. Governor General's visit to the 'Flat: historic event of the visit of Sir William Slim to officially open the R.S.L. Club in 1957 (1982) *Captains Flat Mining Record*, Saturday 4 October 1982
- 18.149. Grand United Order of Oddfellows branch opens at Captain's Flat (1898) *Queanbeyan Observer* 22 February 1898
- 18.150. Griffiths, John W. (2004) *A True bushman's life of law and order*. Mermaid Waters, Qld., Zeus Publications. 444 p.
- 18.151. Hanson, William (1889) Pastoral possessions of New South Wales: alphabetically arranged in the Eastern, Central and Western Divisions with the names of the pastoral holders of the Crown, the land district and county in which each holding is attached, the area in acres, the annual rent and license fee, the rate per acre and per section for each leasehold and resume area respectively, with copious indices and a map. Sydney, Gibbs, Shallard & Co., 1889.
- 18.152. Hedges, David. (1978) Interview with David and Olive Hedges, residents of Captain's Flat, N.S.W.
- 18.153. Henderson, Pam (1972) Flat is waiting hoping *Canberra Times*, 8 August 1972: 14-15

- 18.154. Historic Carwoola for auction (1997) *Australian Financial Review* 17 February 1997
- 18.155. The History of Captain's Flat Police Station: 93 years of service (1984) *Queanbeyan Age* n.d.
- 18.156. The History of Foxlow Station (1983) *Captains Flat Mining Record* 3 October 1981 p.12
- 18.157. Hodgman, Jenni (2004) Parkers Gap: recollections of Carl Thompson. Captains Flat, N.S.W.; The Author, 2004
- 18.158. Honour roll part three Australia Day honours (2004). *The Australian*, 26 January 2004: David John Yarra achievement of asset sale objectives.
- 18.159. Hoping fires would be contained (2003) *Queanbeyan Age*, 22 January 2003
- 18.160. Hotel licences renewed: Miners' Arms Hotel and Goggin's (1897) Goulburn Post 13 July 1897
- 18.161. House numbers at The Flat: all premises being numbered following requests from tradesmen (1949) *Goulburn Evening Post*: 4
- 18.162. Hughes, P.J (1978) An archaeological survey of the route of the Koombahlah 11,000 volt transmission line: a report to the Southern Tablelands County Council, April 1978. Canberra: ANU School of General Studies, 1978.
- 18.163. Hutchinson, Linda (1997) Kerr's Creek clean-up *Flat chat*, March '97: 1
- 18.164. Jingera police: new force stationed at Wild Cattle Flat (1862) *Golden Age* 28 June 1862
- 18.165. Jingera police: visit with a view to establishing a mounted police force: visit included Wild Cattle Flat and Captain's Flat (1861) *Golden Age* 12 December 1861

- 18.166. John Jordan of Queanbeyan obtains contract to build Methodist Church at Captain's Flat (1897) *Goulburn Post* 30 September 1987
- 18.167. Johnston, T.A. *A brief history of Radcliffe and the surrounding area*. http://www.pcug.or.au/~jgunn/history2.html
- 18.168. Kelly country drinkers accept 'Flat challenge (1969) Queanbeyan Age 12 August 1969: 1
- 18.169. Kerr, Tom (1971) Memories flood back for old 'Flat identity: Jean McDougall (nee Stewart) *Queanbeyan Age* 19 February 1971
- 18.170. Koehler, Mark (2002) A little piece of history uncovered, *Queanbeyan Age,* Friday 5 April 2002
- 18.171. Kowalick, Peter (2001) New horse centre for Captains Flat, *Queanbeyan Age*, Wednesday 4 July 2001
- 18.172. Kowalick, Peter (2001) Price hike for the elderly: end of a community bus excursion service, *Queanbeyan Age*, Monday 30 April 2001
- 18.173. Kowalick, Peter (2001) Waste crisis looms, *Queanbeyan Age*, Friday 30 March 2001.
- 18.174. Little Tinderry for sale under instructions from executors of the late Thomas Dwyer (1895) *Queanbeyan Observer* 29 March 1895
- 18.175. Lucas, Stacey (2001) Signs of Satanism, graves dug up in church attacks, *Canberra Times*, Monday 26 February 2001
- 18.176. Lynravn, Joan (1969) The weather was the only robber: Sir Paul and Lady Hasluck at the Captains Flat Ned Kelly Gymkhana, *Canberra Times*, 25 August 1969
- 18.177. Mac the Knife: new knife making business at Captains Flat (1994) *Queanbeyan Age*, 16 December 1994
- 18.178. Magistrates appointed: John Wallace Watson and Septimus Lindsay Furner (1897) *Queanbeyan Observer* 8 June 1897

- 18.179. Maher, Brian (2001) *Chords from the harp: a history of Bungendore Catholic Community*, Bungendore: Rev. Brian Maher, 2001.
- 18.180. McDonald, Frank Irving, (1975) [*Interview with Frank Irving McDonald*] 1975 Feb. 20 1975 Mar. 6. National Library of Australia, Oral History Collection.
- 18.181. McGowan, Barry (2004) Class, hegemony and localism: the southern mining region of New South Wales, 1850-1900 *Labour history* no. 86, May 2004: 93-113
- 18.182. McGowan, Barry (2002) *Dust and dreams: a regional history of mining and community in south east New South Wales*. PhD thesis, School of Resources, Environment and Society, Australian National University.
- 18.183. Metal boom makes new 'city' (1938) *Pix*, July 2, 1938: 11-13
- 18.184. Methodist Church holds concert in aid of building fund (1897) *Queanbeyan Observer* 16 February 1897
- 18.185. Miscellaneous notices: ... A Branch of the Union Bank of Australia has opened at Captains Flat, New South Wales (1937) *The Times*, December 9, 1937, issue 47863: 23, col. G
- 18.186. Monthly community market at Captains Flat (2004) *Bungendore Mirror*, Wednesday 11 August 2004: 1.
- 18.187. Moran, Val (1980) 'Flat future looks bright *Captains Flat Mining Record* Saturday, October 4, 1980:1
- 18.188. Move to attract new industries to Captain's Flat (1954) *Queanbeyan Age* 9 July 1954
- 18.189. Mr Gracie's large store almost finished (1898) *Queanbeyan Observer* 14 January 1898
- 18.190. Mr Hicks manager of Captain's Flat Record arrives at Captain's Flat and is welcomed by Mayor Pike of Queanbeyan (1898) *Queanbeyan Observer* 4 Jan 1898.

- 18.191. Nairn, Gary (1999) Adjournment: Eden-Monaro Electorate; Commonwealth Recognition Awards for Senior Australians: Elsie McGovern, *Federal Government Hansard* 21 October 1999.
- 18.192. "Ned Kelly" funds to be spent in the 'Flat (1970) Queanbeyan Age 15 December 1970: 1
- 18.193. New brickworks at Captain's Flat: orders from Canberra (1926) *Canberra Times*, 17 September 1926: 11.
- 18.194. New developments at Captain's Flat: space tracking station mooted (1964) *Queanbeyan Age* 18 August 1964: 1
- 18.195. New era is seen for Captains Flat (1955) *Queanbeyan Age*, February 4th 1955
- 18.196. New industry for town: sawmill (1970) *Canberra Times*, 29 September 1970
- 18.197. New Methodist Church opened at Captains Flat on 9 January 1898 (1898) *Queanbeyan Observer* 14 January 1898
- 18.198. New township to be established at Captains Flat (1886) *Goulburn Herald* 29 April 1886
- 18.199. No ghost town, the Flat hopeful mine will resume (1954) *Queanbeyan Age* Friday, July 30, 1954:1
- 18.200. 'No Presbyterians' and now church goes (1968) *Canberra Times*, June 25, 1968
- 18.201. Noise like a 'fire cracker' before fatal blaze: Wayne John Flanagan died in the fire which consumed his Captains Flat home on Sunday night (1994) *Canberra Times*, Tuesday 15 November 1994: 2
- 18.202. Oberg, Leon (2003) Bureau's eye in sky regional hit: \$2.35million Captains Flat radar popular *Town & Country Magazine*, 13 January 2003: 1
- 18.203. Oberg, Leon (1994) Hobby museum labour of love for Chris [Binet], *Town and Country Magazine*, 14 February 1994: 1

- 18.204. O'Hanlon, Gerald (1976) History of Yarrowlumla Shire, in Selth, P.A., *Canberra Collection*. Kilmore, Vic.: Lowden, 1976
- 18.205. Oil company interest in Captain's Flat (1970) *Queanbeyan Age* 6 October 1970: 1
- 18.206. Old Pub to 'help bury its past': Cleary Brothers Pty Ltd has bought Captains Flat Hotel to house its employees while reshaping and covering the mine dumps (1976) *Canberra Times*, 31 March 1976
- 18.207. One man's heritage examined: Tom Kerr official speaker National Heritage Week (1982) *Queanbeyan Age*, 21 April 1982.
- 18.208. The other famous watering hole: a Bills water trough: extracted from an article by Laura Cochrane in the Weekly Times. *The Black and White of Captains Flat* July-Aug 2003.
- 18.209. The Pastoral homes of Australia: Foxlow, New South Wales (1927) *The pastoral review*, 16 March 1927:213-215
- 18.210. Picnic at Molonglo (1869) *Queanbeyan Age* 11 April 1869
- 18.211. Piece of freehold land owned by George Osborne, Foxlow rumoured to have been sold for £1000 (1897) *Goulburn Post* 23 September 1897
- 18.212. Police forage contracts let for one year from 1 April 1897 (1897) Goulburn Herald 15 March 1897
- 18.213. Police Station at Wild Cattle Flat: the establishment of a police station for Jingera and their location at Wild Cattle Flat, a place in the very heart of the hiding places of the horse and cattle stealers of the Monaro has been of beneficial effect (1863) *Queanbeyan Age* 7 May 1863
- 18.214. Press release: carols by candlelight (2005) *Captains Flat Telegraph* November/December 2005: 8
- 18.215. Progress Committee meeting (1898) *Queanbeyan Observer* 3 June 1898

- 18.216. Prominent identities for 'Flat meeting: to consider possible industrial and commercial developments (1964) *Queanbeyan Age* 1 September 1964
- 18.217. Pryke, Susan (1983) *Boom to bust and back again: Captains Flat,* 1883-1983. Captain's Flat, N.S.W.: Captains Flat Task Force, [1983].v, 88 p.: ill., maps., ports.; 26 cm.
- 18.218. Pryke, Susan, (1995) *Boom to bust and back again: Captain's Flat 1883-1995* / by Susan Pryke; updated by Janet Van Straaten & Alan V. Walker. 2nd ed. Captain's Flat, N.S.W.: Captain's Flat Residents & Ratepayers Association, [1995] vi, 102 p.: ill., maps, ports.; 25 cm.
- 18.219. Public house licences: proceedings at Queanbeyan Licensing Court (1897) *Goulburn Post* 12 October 1897
- 18.220. Public meeting at Captains Flat, the Plaza Theatre, 7.30 Tuesday night July 8: back to Captains Flat week and rodeo (1969) *Queanbeyan Age* 4 July 1969
- 18.221. Quinn v Watson, slander case withdrawn at Queanbeyan District Court; plaintiff medical officer to Lake George Mining Co. (1898) *Queanbeyan Observer* 1 February 1898
- 18.222. Requests from Association approved: several requests from Captain's Flat Progress Association have been approved by the Yarrowlumla Shire Council (1963) *Queanbeyan Age* Tuesday 7 May 1963
- 18.223. Residents of Captain's Flat urged to form a Progress Committee by E.W. O'Sullivan (1895) *Queanbeyan Observer* 22 February 1895
- 18.224. Reunion at Flat (1979) *Queanbeyan Age* 15 June 1979: 11
- 18.225. Reynolds, G. T. (1993) *Captain's Flat electoral roll 1922*. Batemans Bay, N.S.W.: Possum Printing, 1993? 20 p.: 1 map; 21 cm. "A memento of a buffet dinner held at Captains Flat Workers Club on Monday 22 February 1993 in the presence of The Hon. David Simmons, Federal Minister for Local Government" -- Cover.
- 18.226. Richardson, J. M. (1965) The Town at the end of the horror stretch *The Australian*, Wednesday 17 February 1965

- 18.227. Roach, John. (1978) *Interview with John Roach, resident of Captain's Flat, N.S.W.* National Library of Australia, Oral History Collection.
- 18.228. Ross, Edgar (1993) *Edgar Ross: An autobiographical sketch* http://agitprop.org.au/lefthistory/1993 ross an autobiographical sketch.php
- 18.229. Royal Hotel licence granted to James Byrne (1897) *Goulburn Post* 2 November 1897
- 18.230. Salins, Christine (2001) Canberra region gets in the grove, *Canberra Times*, Wednesday 25 April 2001
- 18.231. Sands' Country Directory and Gazetteer of N.S.W. for 1881-1882. Sydney: John Sands, 1882
- 18.232. Satanic cult link to dug up graves (2001) *Sun Herald*, 25 February 2001.
- 18.233. Saved little girl from storm channel: Cherry Oldfield rescued by Betty Cahill (1954) *Queanbeyan Age*, 10 August 1954:1
- 18.234. Sawmill heralds industrial future for the Flat (1971) *Canberra Times*, 8 July 1971: 11
- 18.235. Sawmill proposed at the "Flat" (1963) *Queanbeyan Age*, Tuesday 7 May 1963
- 18.236. Scherer, Richard (1979) The paradoxes of Captains Flat *Canberra Times*, Monday 17 December 1979
- 18.237. Schwinghamer, Glenn. (1978) *Interviews with residents of Captain's Flat, N.S.W.* National Library of Australia, Oral History Collection.
- 18.238. Senator throws light on Captains Flat: Minister for National Development, Senator Spooner in Goulburn last night dispelled gloomy predictions on the future of Lake George Mines (1958) *Goulburn Evening Post*: 5

- 18.239. Shire endorse actions on Plaza Theatre hire (1966) *Queanbeyan Age* 27 September 1966
- 18.240. Simpson, Pam (1971) Captains Flat: a town waiting to be reawakened, *Courier*, 28 October 1971
- 18.241. Snow at Captains Flat (1984) Canberra Times, 20 June 1984
- 18.242. St Thomas Anglican Church, Captains Flat Rd, via Queanbeyan, NSW. Register of the National Estate, id 1172 http://www.deh.gov.au
- 18.243. Stanton, Susan (1985) Shadow of the poppet head, *This Australia*, June 1985: 55-69.
- 18.244. State Archives of New South Wales. Concise guide to the State Archives. Courts of Petty Sessions. Depositions, 1964, CGS 2891. (Kingswood 3/14050). Captains Flat. 1 box.
- 18.245. Steeper, Tony. Flat Ball was a roaring success (2005) Bungendore Mirror 30 November 2005: 10
- 18.246. Tobler, Conrad. Personal records (1926-1951) *Australian Historic Records Register*. http://www.nla.gov.au/ahrr/
- 18.247. Transport action council launched: Penny Lockwood has bee elected Secretary (1990) *Queanbeyan Age* 17 April 1990
- 18.248. Turton, Ray. (1978) *Interview with Ray Turton, resident of Captain's Flat, N.S.W.* National Library of Australia, Oral History Collection.
- 18.249. Vacant land, Captains Flat, NSW, property of Lake George Mines Ltd, occupied by the Commonwealth (1947) [Box 255] Item barcode 3111426 Series number SP459/1 Series accession number SP459/1 Control symbol 518/6/3819 Location National Archives of Australia Sydney
- 18.250. VH-MLB with other Western Aerial equipment http://www.dhc-2.com/id620_m.htm
- 18.251. Warden, Ian (1977) Captains bell still tolls for the Flat *Canberra Times*, Saturday 19 February 1977: 11

- 18.252. Warden, Ian (1979) Disraelis Creek: a unique atmosphere a feeling of ghostliness and sorrow. Ian Warden and Geoff Pryor visit a little known scene of Australian history *Canberra Times*, 1 April 1979.
- 18.253. Warden, Ian (2001) Goggin reunion marks place in local history, *Canberra Times*, Monday 1 October 2001
- 18.254. Waterhouse, Jill (1998) Edward John Eyre: Queanbeyan district owner, overlander and explorer, especially his relationships with the local Aboriginal people and convicts. Eyre owned "Woodlands" which became part of "Carwoola". *Canberra & District Historical Society Journal*, no. 41, March 1998:15
- 18.255. Watery reminder of quiet pioneers: couples' legacy of concrete still quenching horses' thirst around the world (1995) *Sydney Telegraph*, 9 April 1995.
- 18.256. What's-a-name down the road (2002) *Queanbeyan Age*, Friday 13 December 2002
- 18.257. Williams, Evan (1969) A day in the Flat, *Sydney Morning Herald*, August 23, 1969: 16
- 18.258. Workers' Club at the Flat (1953) *Queanbeyan Age* 16 October 1953
- 18.259. Yarrowlumla Shire Council Roll of Honour for the International Year of Volunteers 2001
 http://www.yarrowlumla.nsw.gov.au/News/ROLL%20OF%20HONOUR%20 2001.pdf
- 18.260. Yewen, Alfred (1900) Yewen's directory of the landholders of New South Wales: Queanbeyan District; Captain's Flat Division. Sydney: Farm and Dairy Publishing, 1900.: 423

19. Sport

- 19.1. All-star boxing programme for Captain's Flat (1958) *Queanbeyan Age* 10 October 1958
- 19.2. Amusements: the final bout of the boxing tournament was decided (1892) *Queanbeyan Age* Saturday, October 1, 1892
- 19.3. Appreciation to greenkeepers (2003) *ACT Bowls Journal* vol 18 no. 5 June/July 2003: 34
- 19.4. Autumn greens inspection (2004) *Bowls ACT Journal* v. 19 no. 5, June/July 2004: 28
- 19.5. Blind bowling: at Captains Flat R.S.L.& Citizens Bowling Club (1983) *Captains Flat Mining Record* Sunday, October 2, 1983: 2
- 19.6. BMX track (2005) *Flat Chat* Issue 2 December 2005: 2
- 19.7. Boxing match: the battle between Dan O'Donnell (the Captain's Flat footballer) and Jack Conlon drew an enormous crowd (1899) *Queanbeyan Age* Saturday, July 12, 1899
- 19.8. Bungendore: the return match between Bungendore and Queanbeyan...fullback Coffey (from Captain's Flat) (1900) *Queanbeyan Age* Wednesday, 12 June, 1900
- 19.9. Capt. Flat (2004) *Bowls ACT Journal* vol 20 no. 1 Aug/Sept 2004: 16
- 19.10. Captains Flat: first McGovern Cup (2005) *Bowls ACT Journal* vol 20 no 5 June/July 2005: 14
- 19.11. Captain's Flat bowling club reborn (2002) *Bungendore Bulletin*, December 2002: 16
- 19.12. Captain's Flat boxers do well at Nimmitabel (1957) *Queanbeyan Age* Thursday, April 18, 1957

- 19.13. Captains Flat: Chris Haines cooks food for Greens Committee (2003) *ACT Bowls Journal* vol 18 no 5, June/July 2003: 54
- 19.14. Captain's Flat Cricket Club (1895) *Queanbeyan Age* Saturday, May 11, 1895
- 19.15. Captains Flat Cup (1982) *Captains Flat Mining Record* Sunday, October 3, 1982:8
- 19.16. Captain's Flat football (1959) Queanbeyan Age 5 May 1959
- 19.17. Captain's Flat Football Club to play Newtown Rovers for O'Sullivan Challenge Cup (1897) *Goulburn Herald* 28 May 1897
- 19.18. Captain's Flat Pony & Galloway Club general meeting at Stowe's Miner's Arms Hotel, 28 February. J.Lee, W. Harriett and C.Sacagio appointed as ball committee (1898) *Queanbeyan Observer* 11 March 1898
- 19.19. Captain's Flat: public meeting at Miners' Arms Hotel to organise a horse race for Easter Monday (1895) *Queanbeyan Age*, 19 February 1895
- 19.20. Captain's Flat Racing Club holds Easter Monday meeting (1895) Queanbeyan Observer 19 April 1895
- 19.21. Captain's Flat Rovers and Queanbeyan football match (1898) Queanbeyan Observer 21 June 1898
- 19.22. Captains Flat: Speedy sports at Captains Flat (2006) *Bowls ACT Journal* vol. 21 no. 4 April/May 2006: 14
- 19.23. Captain's Flat swimming pool (1966) *Queanbeyan Age* 18 February 1966
- 19.24. Darts night at Workers' Club (1964) *Queanbeyan Age* 23 June 1964
- 19.25. Death of a sportsman: H. Dumbrell: foundation member and President of the Captain's Flat Bowling Club (1978) *Queanbeyan Age* 3 March 1978: 17

- 19.26. Driver profile & history: drag racer Simon Holgerson of the Nasty Bug Racing Team http://www.nastybug.com/racing/driver/main.htm
- 19.27. 'Flat gossip: members of the 'Flat Golf Club tendered a farewell afternoon tea to Mrs V Roach (1954) Queanbeyan News Friday, August 13, 1954
- 19.28. Flat pool is rebuilt (1980) *Captains Flat Mining Record* Saturday, October 4, 1980:10
- 19.29. Football clubs formed in Captain's Flat: Rovers. Captain's Flat and Waratahs for 1898 season (1898) *Queanbeyan Observer* 5 April 1898
- 19.30. Football match held at Captain's Flat between Captain's Flat Club and Newtown Pirates (1896) *Queanbeyan Observer* 18 August 1896
- 19.31. Footy fan warned off pilgrimage to sacred site *Canberra Times*, 31 August 2002. http://www.pcug.or.au/~jgunn/history2.html
- 19.32. A Global challenge: sportsman Michael Kiernan has a new global challenge (1993) *Queanbeyan Age*, 26 March 1993
- 19.33. Gymnast, H.C. Daly appointed to Captain's Flat Athletic Club held in Mrs Goggin's Hall (1898) *Queanbeyan Observer* 25 March 1898
- 19.34. History of Rugby League in the Canberra District. http://www.canberrareferees.com.au/docs/history.html
- 19.35. How the Cup originated: suggestion of Queanbeyan Racing Club President Mr Tony Allport to Tom Kerr (1971) *Queanbeyan Age* 2 April 1971
- 19.36. re: International Rules Series about Wills and Rugby 26/10/2003 12:01:33 AM post id: 29923 http://www2b.abc.net.au/grandstand/afl/newposts/29/topic29831.shtm
- 19.37. Kerr, Tom (1982) 'Flat Cup feature: last day of the "number niners" *Queanbeyan Age*, 26 March 1982

- 19.38. Lands Department notices: notices appointing trustees under the Public Trusts Act, 1897.-Proclamation; Reserve no. 80,641 at Captain's Flat. *New South Wales Government Gazette* no. 66, 4 July 1958: 2005
- 19.39. Last day of the "Number Niners": Captain's Flat Racing Club (1971) *Queanbeyan Age* 2 April 1971
- 19.40. Last Flat race: the last race meeting at the old Captain's Flat Racecourse near the top of Jerangle Hill was held in 1928 (1982) *Queanbeyan Age* 26 March 1982
- 19.41. Lawn bowls back after 7 years (2002) *Queanbeyan Age*, 13 December 2002
- 19.42. Lawn bowls again at Captains Flat (2003) *ACT Bowls Journal*, vol. 18 no. 3, Jan/Feb 2003:16
- 19.43. Loose men everywhere: Thomas Wentworth Wills born at Molonglo Plains founder of Aussie Rules (2003) posted 22/07/2003 6:50:10 PM post id: 3174

 http://www2b.abc.net.au/rn/arts/atbooks/disc/newposts/3/topic3174.shtm
 Loose men everywhere by John Harms published as part of Play on (a sporting omnibus)
- 19.44. McGovern, Elsie (1998) Captains Flat Bowling Club celebrates its 20th birthday *Flat cha*t, June '98: 1
- 19.45. McPhee, Ian (2002) The President's message: the Captains Flat Bowling Club is resurrecting itself, *ACT Bowls Journal* vol. 17 no. 3, Jan/Feb 2002: 6-7
- 19.46. New shine on the Flat's cup; Queanbeyan Racing Club Captains Flat Cup sponsored by the Hotel, RSL and Store (2004) *Canberra Times*, 25 January 2004
- 19.47. Newtown Tennis Club (1966) *Queanbeyan Age* 31 May 1966
- 19.48. Newtown Tennis Club (1966) *Queanbeyan Age* 16 August 1966
- 19.49. Olympic award to the 'Flat (1982) *Captains Flat Mining Record*, Saturday 4 October 1982

- 19.50. Park improvements at Captains Flat: Molonglo Park extended by a resumption of land belonging to Lake George Mine Co. (1949) *Goulburn Evening Post*: 4
- 19.51. Proud record for Redmen (1980) *Captains Flat Mining Record* Saturday, October 4, 1980:15
- 19.52. Queanbeyan club's new feature race: Captain's Flat Cup (1970) *Queanbeyan Age* 2 October 1970
- 19.53. Recreation Grounds Association (1985) *The Flat Chat* No. 6 March '85: [7]
- 19.54. RSL Bowling Club (2005) *Captains Flat Telegraph* November/December 2005: 8
- 19.55. Shepherd, Jim (1980) Nayor, Rufus Theodore 1882-1939 in *Australian encyclopedia of sport*: 311-313
- 19.56. Spring inspection of the Captains Flat greens (2002) *ACT Bowls Journal* vol 18 no. 2 Nov/Dec 2002:48
- 19.57. Steeper wins Elsie McGovern Cup by 1 point (2005) *Bungendore Mirror* 15 June 2005: 12
- 19.58. "The Great Australian gamble" Rufe Naylor (1966) *Australasian Turf Monthly* December 1966
 http://www.aapracingandsports.com.au/racing/racingfeatures.asp?f=featurearticles-greatgamblers04
- 19.59. Two jockeys debarred (1900) *Queanbeyan Age* Saturday, 24 February 1900
- 19.60. Up the Redmen: Captains Flat Redmen won their third premiership in five years when they defeated Canberra Camels in the ACT Rugby League second division grand final for 1981 (1981) *Captains Flat Mining Record*, Saturday, October 3, 1981:20

20. War

World War I records of people born at Captains Flat or enlisting at Captains Flat, are available on the Australian War Memorial website. Individuals are not listed here. World War II records are available from the National Archives of Australia. Individuals are not listed here.

- 20.1. Anzac Day at Captains Flat c1950 (2005) *Bungendore Mirror* 17 August 2005: 9
- 20.2. Captains Flat (from our own Correspondent): Patriotic concert held (1915) *Queanbeyan Age* 14 December 1915
- 20.3. Captains Flat [Occupation by Australian Military Forces of premises in Foxlow Street, Series number A12217 Series accession number 2002/4876252 Control symbol L9310 Contents date range 19 Sep 1944 23 Jan 1945 Extent 0.25cm. This series is Alien Land Transfer titled and in 1942 the Commonwealth agency concerned was the Investigation Branch which became ASIO. Location National Archives of Australia, Canberra
- 20.4. Captains Flat Specification for standard duration home units providing temporary housing for war workers in NSW. 01 January 1943. [Box 12] Item barcode 1683285 Series number SP155/1 Series accession number SP155/1 Control symbol CAPTAINS FLAT 1 Contents date range 1943 1943 Location National Archives of Australia, Sydney
- 20.5. Captains Flat the property of Mr JW Kerr; required by 'C' Company 14th Volunteer defence Corps Battalion for storage and as orderly room. Includes claim for compensation] [0.5 cm] Item barcode 3492507 Series number SP16/4 Series accession number SP16/4 Control symbol 3943 Contents date range 1943 1946. This series of records is the property files for sites in NSW hired or acquired for the Department of Defence during World War II. Location National Archives of Australia, Sydney
- 20.6. Cranston, Frank (1995) The mining drama at Captains Flat: 1939 Japanese interests Lake George Mine *Canberra Times*, February 9, 1995
- 20.7. Help for air raid victims: Finn's practical sympathy; In sending £282 8s the Lake George Mining Corp stated it was a contribution mainly from the employees of the mines at Captains Flat, New South Wales (1940) *The Times*, Saturday, October 26, 1940, issue 48757: 11 col E

- 20.8. *Mr A K Harris, Mulga Street, Captains Flat requests Navy papers* Item barcode 5924198 Series number MP150/1 Series accession number MP150/1/0 Control symbol 582/201/1648 Contents date range 1940 1940 Extent 2 folios Location National Archives of Australia, Melbourne.
- 20.9. Shakespeare Lodge, NSW, Captains Flat reduction in the liquor supplies available to Captains Flat (1945) Item barcode 6940104 Series number A1539 Series accession number A1539/1 Control symbol 1945/W/702 Extent 11 folios. This series relates to war time restrictions. Location National Archives of Australia, Canberra.
- 20.10. Welcome home at Foxlow: Pte R. Daniel M.M. and Pte Frank Doran (1919) *Queanbeyan Age* 13 June 1919

21. Water supply

- 21.1. \$2.2m to repair dam at Flat!: Yarrowlumla Shire Council faces expenditure to bring dam to "minimal safety margin" (1988) Queanbeyan Age, 3 August 1988
- 21.2. Anderson, J. (1991) Captains Flat Dam post tensioning: review of environmental factors by J. Anderson, J. Hetherington, M.N. Clarke; prepared for Yarrolwumla Shire Council Sydney, N.S.W.; Public Works Dept, 1991
- 21.3. Australia. Senate Select Committee on Water Pollution (1970)
 Water pollution in Australia; report from the Senate Select Committee on
 Water Pollution. Canberra, Commonwealth Government Printing Office,
 1970
- 21.4. Bierwirth, P.N., and Pfitzner, K. S., (2001). Identifying acid minedrainage pollution at Captains Flat, NSW, using Airborne HYMAP Data. *Proceedings of International Geoscience and Remote Sensing Symposium*, Sydney. 2001, v.6 pp VI: 2

http://geology.anu.edu.au/Student/Philip_Bierwirth.html

- 21.5. Bishop, B. J. et. al (1992) Public involvement and dam safety criteria: toward a definition of 'informed consent'. *Ancoid bulletin*, 1992-12, 92:53-61
- 21.6. Bryant, Nick (2002). Geochemical and Geomorphological distribution of heavy metals in the Molonglo River down stream of the mine site at Captains Flat. BSc(Hons). Macquarie University
- 21.7. Captains Flat dam: safety review (1977) Sydney, N.S.W.; Dept of Public Works, 1977. Report (New South Wales Department of Public Works); no. SR1
- 21.8. Captain's Flat water meters future growth (1988) *Queanbeyan Age* 10 October 1988
- 21.9. Captains Flat water problems are continuing: pumps failing and water content showing high iron content (1987) *Queanbeyan Age*, 19 August 1987

- 21.10. Captains Flat water project underway (2001) *Queanbeyan Age* Monday, 19 February 2001
- 21.11. Check on safety of Flat dam: help the planners; a community investigation of Captains Flat Dam safety policy is planned (1991) *Queanbeyan Age* Monday, 9 September 1991
- 21.12. Concern over dam: post-tensioning recommended (1988) *Southern rural* (Wagga Wagga, NSW) 1988-09-09: 24
- 21.13. Dam flooding warning system talks tonight: a public meeting is to be held at Captain's Flat (1990) *Queanbeyan Age* 19 August 1990
- 21.14. Dam monitored: Captains Flat Volunteer State Emergency Service personnel and about 20 others from the region monitored Captains Flat dam throughout Wednesday night in case it collapsed (1991) *Queanbeyan Age*, 14 June 1991
- 21.15. Doherty, Megan (2002) Yarrowlumla Council offers bush battlers free water, *Canberra Times*, Thursday 14 November 2002
- 21.16. *Double exposure: Captains Flat water supply* (1981) Radio program of 1st February 1981. Location, National Film and Sound Archive, Canberra
- 21.17. 'Flat chlorination starting tonight: the village water mains being slug dosing tonight (1987) *Queanbeyan Age* Tuesday, 21 April 1987
- 21.18. 'Flat dam failure is worry' (1990) *Queanbeyan Age*, 5 March 1990
- 21.19. Flat given financial assistance: for sewerage system (1993) *Queanbeyan Age*, 26 July 1993
- 21.20. Flat water pollution action plan: inspection by Minister; the State Water Pollution Control Commission will soon launch an action plan to try and rectify Captain's Flat water supply problems (1989) Queanbeyan Age Monday, 7 August 1989:1
- 21.21. Flat water supply is a wash-out? Shire Council concern (1989) *Queanbeyan Age* 24 July 1989

- 21.22. Gallagher, Wendy (1989) Landuse and land degradation in the catchment of Burrinjuck Dam since European settlement. [Wagga Wagga, N.S.W.: Murrumbidgee Catchment Management Committee], 1989. 2 v.: ill., maps; 30 cm
- 21.23. Hope crops up for irrigators as the Darling River flows again/ Raincheck on town water (2003) *Sydney Morning Herald*, 19 March 2003:10
- 21.24. International Commission on Large Dams. *Bulletin 121 Tailings accidents*. http://www.tailings.info/accidents.htm
- 21.25. Keen, G (2002) Australia-Wide Assessment of River Health: Australian Capital Territory Bioassessment Report (ACT Interim Final Report) Monitoring River Health Initiative Technical Report Number 3 Environment Australia, May 2002 http://www.deh.gov.au/water/rivers/nrhp/act/murrumbidgee.html.
- 21.26. Mannix, Teresa (1987) Saga of Captains Flat water chlorination trickles on *Canberra Times*, 17 April 1987
- 21.27. Media Release Ministers Office. Sydney: 13 March 2003 Captains Flat Water Treatment Plant Opened. NSW Minister for Land and Water Conservation, John Aquilina, today opened the new water treatment plant for the small town of Captains Flat, south of Queanbeyan. http://www.dlwc.nsw.gov.au/mediarel/mo20030313_1916.html
- 21.28. Molonglo River in flood (1959) *Queanbeyan Age*, 27 October 1959
- 21.29. More money for the Flat: additional funds to augment the water supply, *Queanbeyan Age*, Friday 28 December 2001
- 21.30. New South Wales. Dam Safety Committee (1996) *Prescribed dams in NSW: appendix B- current prescribed dams*. Sydney, DSC, October 1996
- 21.31. New South Wales. Department of PublicWorks. Geotechnical Centre, Engineering Services Branch (1991) *Captains Flat dam: geotechnical investigation*. Sydney, The Department, 1991.

- 21.32. New South Wales. Department of PublicWorks. Port Kembla District Office (1978) *Investigation report on Captains Flat sewerage scheme*. Port Kembla, The Office, 1978
- 21.33. O'Sullivan, E. W. (1898) Water-supply scheme granted *Captains Flat Mining Record*, Saturday January 15, 1898:2
- 21.34. Protecting our environment: the Molonglo Catchment Group (2004) *Queanbeyan Age*, Monday 5 January 2004
- 21.35. Rock wall may answer 'Flat pollution problem: a rock wall instead of mine recovery operations may solve possible water pollution and slime dump subsidence (1968) *Queanbeyan Age* 16 January 1968
- 21.36. Secretary for Mines orders continuation of plans to provide piped water supply rather than by gravitation through an open race (1898) *Queanbeyan Observer* 21 January 1898
- 21.37. Sewerage scheme only solution to sullage (1968) *Queanbeyan Age* 24 September 1968
- 21.38. Sewerage scheme start early 1981 (1980) *Captains Flat Mining Record* Saturday, October 4, 1980:3
- 21.39. Sloane, P. I. W. and R. H. Norris (2003) Relationship of AUSRIVAS-based macroinvertebrate predictive model outputs to a metal pollution gradient. *Journal of the North American Benthological Society*: vol. 22, no. 3: 457–471.
- 21.40. Tenders closed for slime dump rock wall (1968) *Queanbeyan Age* 28 May 1968
- 21.41. Thompson, W. E. (1984) *Captains Flat dam: surveillance report for Yarrowlumla Shire Council.* Sydney, Public Works Department, Civil Engineering Division, 1984.
- 21.42. Vivian, Rick (1987) Captain's Flat: contaminated water *Bogong* 1987 (4): 7